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TGTSEH! TEEEATS JATd A T | THAT Toehe Aohet TorTed, URTS T qUSHT SHISTE T AUTelgedTs fodid Jar yare

O

A

< W
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& ST SATEAT &7 STHITSTT JTehT g8 THe USIT STecid HeATel fSToaiTehl HeiTTaTHT Wehl TeRT faehte ek 3ugth dee
T BT YodTohd TEohT @ | STTH faar e T fashmer Sohel 3 Soh T faxfiar Heemeten @isf T Aoit qer
TfrafSTe AThd TEATETS o7 T6h SIS ofs dTEehTe ™ aed few ST aeeh! |

W, AT T TR sehet aTHIeRT arsmT o fafafeerter Tt aTe AR ST HAfha! HISE e |

S, THIH! HAT T HEATRT STAIHATATS (ST Sohshl STSICHT ATHSSIEIAT I GATRI 31T iTeee o7 18 ST |

%. AT AHRTR TAT qGETRIR T

I T ATTEHT D | SHATHUE b TETTEUEH, Torehter SohehT 2 1d qT T FHIATAae% T&ohl CATEEHT Frelf-erd T
TS To, TR qUT 3T HEATCHTRIGHRT STaHTI HfasHeh! qaedr fergent ardr oA swrieshas ety
3 o U faxfier GremesE Ul a9 qerel fosad arrer SR MR © | SAHY feTewnT Ty qraeens 3k dfadr T
HTRAT SIS Al |

9. AT ATHITHT HOHT ZTHRT T FTRT HIIT

FEtET STafamT faehe Sehehl HouTeish AIHIGHT HAT GThL WUhT & | foohTel sohohl AR AT HURT HaET SHITSTH
faenTar Sehen! ToaTereh ATfAHT HETIH IPRUHIEEHR! TYE “&” A1 3 SHT GAETERUT SRRUHIgEh! 998 998 ‘@ a1 3
ST T ¢ ST ST FoaTeish THT el © TE TEehl THETENehT ToaTeish aiaid el S |

-—“

2. oAl TgehT-d S

2. IT.IHEYEE IS S GED S EIED
3. At WHYETE SR HodTelsh HEAHh
¥. oft famet qog HoaTeTh HAETEOT
“. ST, Y= SRIgL T HoaTerh FEETTT
€. oft Gsfia gehret HoaTeTh TGO
o, ot HESIIST AT ECIGED ISRE)

©. FRQALATS T T HET FIEE

favenm HeTTiRT FHT BiduaT Hifvre- QKWWWTWWWWWWW@I
ITRT ST STIEATHT AT TRETAETE T e SITTEHEE |

Tgeht 3TTiien, Hifger qu fadta dmrent Hfaa saaemr g7 ST giEdasTe g7 g dutfad sifemes |
fasft fafma wRiaR et fafrmemr g1 ufEdaene g7 g sifares |

TAATHT G AR TETIhT HRUTST T TAT SHslt AT SATSIGTHT g TR |

S JIGHT A T STEHEE |

98T Hehet, TR, T o1l ETUEIehT GERT BN 30T g1 T SITGHEE |

TJT GHITT STl STAT T IcI~ g SHIEHEE |

AT TSTHT g HedlalTe JUTet SISTAT U Ha STETETE & Ha T STeHes |

YSTESIAT 3713 T SARTETINE G o SITEHEE |

Fenfeush TTHT e 1T |

TAUTUT STTHHT TS T IR FTaaTe 37 LA FhNIcHS THTE T fasiT gieea SifeaHes |

9TeRT Ttifaeh STReeRdTel U Te STETEE |

st Sfersr ufqedeieRT ST O o STETEE |

Ot JIFEERUTTS USeRT ATHT JRTHT SHeEiohd qeATohe® QT FATed Ufafa®en! STvTaet et 3ca=T SITeH |
T wfafeenr fashme S T SfeusHT Toured Siay grrt g |

LA 2B 2 Z2h 20 2B 2B 20 Zb 2B Zh Z2h b Zh Jh 2
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Q. w@EIETRRT forfeh -
AETtterr ginfasr e s stfrear aTiier aramora e s a¥ 0w/ v ST AGTHRIET SR THahT AT
. Y. U, farsrrs fafe, St wve St uHifauey, senmel ramatershaT 1w gausht forl | 3T o R0/ ve @i AT

SRTAATT SRaToersh uh, Y. T, farstaret fafit, St wog Sft weifeuegy, Feumer g7 it ot 2 gag= |

qo. AGTIIEAVT FTTw T Firl FIFTA Ivorg WUHT WY &Y JUX HTeTh Afereht Ficrhar :

foprer Seheht forafira sTaETiaeh SHTRIGTITGRT SFHAT YUHT TTHT HHT FASRT deh U T dehehl Afq fdee aor
werferd &g faufia et merr iR gefaenT femufies eramaRtaer afaaeTT oo &7 | TR quT aTe eRaTRiarehet
TauahT YepTaa®eh! SHIATIT THehT TN HaeITeTs T fegafshuanr @ T tfushisr gubraee wEfaaT Tld wgaHhe!
SITHERRT STEATIASE U URT STHERRT T3 918 |

qq. AW fqa<uT T yEaTE TITHT @

foprer Sfehet oTfeR o 0%/ WY T GATHETE BT YSiT &, 2,33,¢%,¢],¥R¢IRS T 23.4 WiATael g7 T3 W &.
%3, 33,00R|¢R (Rt e Flie e @G 499 e5TR Seek T 99T Srel) 07s7) Seeh! SIS 3R T 3% ST
TR T FATSTRT SATHT BT GSTiahl 0. 020u HqeTder g7 IS ThH &. 3,30,22,0%o0|%¢ (Tl 35 e fag @@ TR

B AT | =Tferer T 9T S13Eg A7) e TSy folawor 7+ Iyt TRUSHT & | IH TFATid JTE AnieT foraiomeht 3%
TYATE HHETAETE TR g STUET et g |

R. ATARE et guTefe fqawor -

TR T TR THehT hHARIEETE Tfiehd T4 Haw=eh! fashme iUt & | foehmer SirmT TTeshiRl 3T e
1 et At fafu=r fifa, frem, frdferet asfar qom stavreRar suifsm dare T aftrsi R SRt 1 i
T | TR RATHRIEIVT TS 3F Il T, Goed SIS, THIT HRISHERT THE0T 7 T Shifawers g-emor = fafaa
ST TRETIIEI0T TehT TTeF THETOR &Tehet STCATUSRT Hihades T aTe Q@THRIaThel 33TTEhT feraufie® er@maRiarer afffaur
TARA & I Fiafdent fawriar smifsm gerers afafaent dehaT Sethet T4 THUHT |

Tershrer Sehent T STfEH ST & T STTEH ST JUTTelTshT TRITeshRIdTeRT FHTETT T STTH el TR STTGH ST
I HH=RY Far glarem afafd, wraesit e ufee qor wrdtd ifgertor farrdreret Hriers 9u Saferd ST
FreEfT THTEh T SFeEIToehT ATRT VA aTfded sHaeTae 3U-Afifd, qom @ite gral SRids T9Esit qor qreslt
TSR AT T8 T FHIHRT SATTepdsh! gl @RE 3T-HiHfd SedenT AHfd ToT 3U-Hiafqes T+ THUhT | Frqor
T T giafaeeare T Mept fuiaee qua Heiers Aifaehl ST~ J3HAT STHehRT TS Jgiden! e TRt
SfepeRT QT TTiafateeeht SRAT HeTeish ATafqaT FHRTHT STHERRT g JUTTetishT farehie TRUERT STHERRT RIS =6 |

AR =T gunefies OT TUTEeRit SIS JaHT FEAT YUl JRamadEvT (Information System Audit) T T
TETHEHRATE SATSTRT HIFATEERT U T T U GubTaTeten! hT-a T+ TTERT & | farshrer sfarenl gamT ufafushr
&IHT 3TT~T GEa SIEH =I[TTT T T STeTee UEd TTHen! ATHT STeT HUSTHT T+ TedenT |19 Disaster Recovery Site
T THA TATIAT TTRUEhT S | fershrer ST o weent fafv=T afnfase T 3w afufaeecr ment swrfewen! faawor dammT fHemgar
Y TR B |

(%) ATAH AQTIIEUT qHET

faerrer SmT Hemersh ot fauer USSR WSt HeTerh ot Sfla gy gee T o qum @ favmT ugw
e giad & T Uk 3T qaTqieioT aiifd el © | a9 afdiael Taehm skl gl e auuT qvime Ty
AGTIRIETOT FISHT (Audit Plan) TR T, femenit fHerrreeate faust fesmesent et faeqor =, sr=ften aer ifaq
TraTItETehehT g chehl AT TARTIE T, SATAIEh TT ATed I@TuRIaishe] Feqd TReRT TTqea-aT STeATSUehT ohihadaeshl
TRAT BABA T ETHT AT ATEITIAATS T faa, Areafier forastor gorefienr afrer qom et ™, fam=e
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TreTraTe. T et T TRt e wfadeT sicansusT Sikadaes T 3t Sithadet U T fegust fadem qur
GYFTaEEeh! ST TR R T HGEATIATS THEwH fa T dereish afafaars gweia fa i 16s | 3TTfis af R0t/ ve
STaferT ETaieoT afafdehr S3 ¢ T T8 B |

(@) Sfew sxaedmm afafd

TarehTer ST HTTeR 1,37 HHIE ISSh! HATSTRAT HaTere T faner qvesy T Sate fam v ae qut Sifeq
AT TAT HEARH T vgE deae afed & T Sifed e afafd @t @ | a8 afafaer Jumer e sewen
qrar-emT <fifed STy, deTer SITEH TRTRIqeRT StiaHesan! qfee T T STEH F-1ehuTenT ST SATavde Arieei Jar

FE T 4D | ST a9 R0/ Lo FATHT SHIGH HEATI diafdeh! da% Y« Teh a0l |

() FHAT dar gien afafa

Tarehrer SepuT HeTeTsh ST TATHITE SIS HATSTRcaTHT FHE st STfrepd T ¢ ST fawTimer v deer qum sy
ST T U Tee dfed & T Ush wEaRT S giaem afafd @ @ | 79 afufaer sieieedrs yem Tie dar
e gremet STavaeh STET TR T hT Rkt ATHT Helersh afafaar fawi mds | sffer af R0u% /w6 tafmr
FHART HaT GieeT afafaent dow 3 T2 THeH S |

(&) gt qfgavoT famor awardt afufa

Tarehmer FepuT T HeTereh oY HESRIST TITSIhT HATSThea™T & TRI Teeish ST, YUE TeIgt TSy daey quT Sifeq

FTEATI TAT FHFATIH T T HeeT |fea & TR T gt S[fgentor Hamer gt afafq @enr & | a9 afffaer
HrE-eHT g geTiad fhameharTd T 41 st faresrorent @i <fifa fmfor T T A SreremT Seers: atafaedar gyee e T
F T | ST o Rows /v STafeT Trdfa SyfgeRtor fameT Trewet afafashr So « Tesw e B |

93. WEAWT FIEA

TorehTer Sehct TEINTA GITHAATS SATHAT ETUHISNG 3 3o WTTHehdTHT (s ST & | faerra dehel HEATTA GRIeenT
qUehT TIESM qT ITIse%eh! T T STTUHT & | HEINTA R HEIATE o TTEehiT SHISAeh! AThT faehmer Sferut
HoeTeTeh ST AT SHawTd T fafv= afafa T 3u-afafq freferer @t &7 | Ju1er U Sehare STt Uehishd e qer
311 yaferd U fememifsm faenme ekt ToaTere qUT FHARIEETE TTeHT T4a- STERUIEE UTeT YU T S goareish
GRITEAITd Gaa AT qoT Aidas ol & |

Q¥. FATAT AAF

31q: foshrd Sepenl SHRATHT wTfaeh! faafacar am=mT grfies favare ™ & dTesh HeIgTaRE, fawm S ererred
gfieTs e gire SRt ARTgvTeet quT faehid Sehhl saeTae T HaTeHaT Shaeds { aHeiid Ws JraH
JATSJE TFUT FHARISE AT ST MTa=ieh AeTgHTaet Jeanit it qum §9 JeTee uid 3 safea qor faswm
ST AhATE BTfdeh TR 53 714, faeht kel STRTHT fa o IOl & = Femefash aHa SFqUl Teieh! SaHTRY0T
TS =TEg | TH Sr@ToRieT s Tra=T Y fafi=T Teaie GybTa HaT T UshHT RATIEsgge qeiT ST TSI RehT &quT
TR HaT FaTE THEhTHT THSATS[aUe U FTiee fafieeas qeareish QAT qhare gMidsh g fa ame=g | a1
TS fataee, fafeuw uve faemfts fafade ermaaert arul fermeeats @ Gt fafi=T ToTesh g¥ha JaM 1Y
HEANT J=ATSTHUERTHT STTHT ferTa®n uf e TeaiiTent STUeT e g1fden SR &3 T16g |
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3Rl ‘@
R fdprRT b faifdrcsdr

UGl Uel, 2063 DY GUWT 90t 3Tedidld J>drcid Afdfad ufddGerdan &ee

0
=

&

&

Y TR WU W TR WO T TEAT, et FICRT il Ted, et U AR GIwaT AT &Y araed ey
Te TTReT ST LA T e T ha WO 81 S fasht TR FFaeier e Tt Tohe @ Sohd WOT ST amd
A Rl TR W "t feaaor

TR T R0E/ v HT FHAUM AL SThd TRTHT & |

ferTer s ST PRt T TR AR FEIEIRT FIATCERT T T A7 ST Tt ST et feaforat qeeraeiiend ©

TG UiqAeTHT Hef eh! TaehTe sihehl TR T R06% /86 T el ITHAT, AT%T I TeaTe T Tg Jare
fereruTer TashTer SehehT SHIUIETERT TTTd TFE-EHT U UTGsH | TodTelsh Aidfdent 3.9, R0/ 0\ T YiddeuT fasm
SlerehT T HPITET Tt TR FHTRT TRUSHT & | AT, 7T STk see 78 faehTer SfefehT u i HeTieh SPaT e |

FEAT TAT AHRT TEAF FEAAIA STHF THHAT FFIA TIRT TG FIRETCEE T T JATAT FEAAHRT FIETCHT STTHT
FH FEeUT A :

3Tfefe a1 R0/ i TT I TTehTE sehet TRERT TFYUT SHRIETR, TR T REETE UTed JUeh! SUTistars I Hfada-shr
a7 SaTeeAT SATETIRAT STJAR H¥qd TRURT & | @1, 7Td i auaed faehme Sehehl HATM TR HFAHT
T |

former smfdie T FFoTRT SMEHA AT FFOAIATE ITA TTHT SAEHIR ©
TS T |

fermer snfier anfaT FraeRT ToaTeE qAT wETfaERTOEEe Ut TRt e fawuT T FEHR S /T
fAoTET G Wl WU &1 ST MeEReTe FFIHe T T SAHETT

TTEIROT TT THET T TRehl S-E I ITeeh 9ehTE SohehT fodiciohat { 350 SJaETIHT Hoi UeTrshiiaseht
ST TEehT IARERT TaaRuT fTTaR ekl & | faehrer SohehT HodlTeteh qIT SEITI-AT RN HUEREE fahm
sfehehT 1A FHTUSTTAT Tl U STHHRT & |

TSATARETHR] CATHEHT TEhT TAT aafeel fqaeor

I e Bl e = e
e | s |

G M £ X W o e

oft SRt~ ST §RIIJE Y,¥IU ¥, 092
IT.3TH< YHTE S HalER R R ¥¢ 43% R%,3¢3 3,3
ot QW gE1E ST daTetsh HEITU RN 2,432 4000319
oft fomrer uUe Tt GEdTERoT 2%,2%0 2%,2%0
1. UE IR TEH o HOETEROT 2%6,¥/4 €0M¥%  R,0%,0%%
sft g<fia gt HdTeish  GEETERoT 3,3 3,3
sff sosHrST YT R = &

(71e: foerTer Sehehl TEATIS I TSHTLIRUT IIFAT FUTALUTRT HRUETE T ool i@d HaTeishatshl AT faehter Sehshr
HEATTe T GAETRUT g TR I TRl STRNT STHeRRT TS |)
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Garima Bikas Bank Limited

femer snif¥ier sfT U e TEVRIATERHT Y AT AT fAsTRT AT ATILTCERaRT S TehiTd Tt STRHT
JUAEE TETHT AR T TR
TET F FRISATRT STHERRT ITeT TR & |

FEIHI HTRAT T SR GEIT T WY TG ATRAT T GG TTHHT HICUT, T AR G ¥ et Tour qa
A AT G TATTA TR TR TR THHA -
FITT STHAT IR ATH GG TR 7 |

ATATCH fFRIe=I0T JUTTEt W a1 AHTHT T WO T At faeda feor
JT=feh FE==I0T YuTTeliehT TreemT Hoarersh aftrfasht afadeT fasga ST faeror auraeT Tiws |

famar anfiier e For SEEATR @ o
Tk o 206/ 9\ T FHol FTEITIT Th! T JERT FTHINTT Th |

FHART @ . ¥%,90,3393/-
CEIGERCE] %, 30,9%,54,55% /-
ST SR T ®. ¢%,¢% 23,0/~

FETeTuT afkfae geeges aMEd!, fAeEed g T aifestEe, W qon giaen, | afifoa e w
FIAEIH! fqawur T & afafoet 1 g g wg &t 1 fawor

FEIT UF R0%3 T GWHT 25% TUT JUT AL Aehalle S T foxfer HEATEEATE STRT TTHUHT Tehichd QT qUh
STCTRT STTITHT & a9 Taehmd AT 3 ST 8T Wehl ¢ orarRieer afafq @t & | 3% afafder au=r gumr
I TABE T HoeTereh AATqT Ufdera ST et |ret faerrer sfrent foxfter feurfa, strafier Tt yomeft, sifag
I TRIUT TFSEHT SEETIAETs (G L g¥hid fagent ard Heeeish AiHfaens STawdeh STHRRT HaH T TRl & |

gerreres ot famet umve RIS ED
garereh ol sier @anter ey
Terereh 4t gAA AN Hool e g

afgerr srafemT a8 afafdeT HaT ¢ FeT J3shet SO R | AWTIRIET dfafdenT S 9T ITId HaTsThalls ATe
TfeaT Ty ufq S8 &, ©,000/- T I HATAH HGHATS &. €,000/ - TUT AT HIGAT Ui GIISThHATS Ui S3 &.
R 000/~ T 3T HHATeTh HEHIATS &. ¢,000 /- deh T T8T UG T TRUHT D | 3t HATqeRT Te&T Fleeers Wl
AT 37T i USH THUshT &7 |

oA, Tard odTed, PR TTE FFAERT AT AuLeAt ar fsrant afsreat ame ar o @ |/
T, FERT AT SIS FEATA FFAAIATE ol THA JHRTSA afaT WY &Y HT -
el THUHT |

AT, Jaee a1, FUF THE T (QHIHIEeATs WehH! TIgHRT qivifhe, war qar giaam &F:
HodTeeh, TSR THE T TETTIRRIEETs ThIHT TRUERT ITCATHe, Wt qoT Giaemen! T I8 SIS el S |

ALTET AAT GoATIHRH] I5F WAT TERLHT ©

afgerr AafmT Houtetesr AHden! S YT AT9d TodTelsh AiHTdehT 3TEET T GeIaTs Ny §F Uid I3 SHasT: &.
9,400/~ T&.18,000 /- WY Ui Uiq 3 SHHIM: &. 20,000/~ TE.%, 000/ - TUT HoATARERIT HAIAEE (AGTHRIETT
afafa, et dar glaur afafa, Sifew s afbfa T et siigeor faror gt afafa) w1 33w aganrft
HASTReATS HTE HigAT G Uid 93 &. 9,000/~ TAT Godlcish HEEIREEATS &. € 000 /-HH HigT IfS Uid S
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SHIT: . 2000/~ T <000/~ 3% VT YSH T+ LT Wohl & | A afmT gereis afafdsr 93 ¢ 2w
TET T HoulToTeh HTATqeRT STEIET TAT Toelcteh HeRIeeclTs HouTareh HiHid T 31T Aiideseh! Siddh YT THd I 28T
SHITSTHRT TR S[ThTHT U SHERT STHhHT THIE-S | AT AfAfdehT 3Teer T HodTeiohalls STeThid @ qeT g=afsient
TId WG &, R, 400|- Y& T TTHTHT F |

meﬁQowa/eemawaammmﬁwwﬁwawmeaﬁww

“_

2. At FEhIed S qraTyrar -2, heht 2,009,400/ -
2. 1. H<CYETE IS BEIcED FTSATUET -3%, TSI 2,%%,000/ -
3. ot TTHYHTE SR R ICED AT -¢, TATSSTT 9,319,000/ -
¥. oft former qTog BEIGED FraR-<, fedaT R,03,000/~
“. M. U= TR ESHT  HaTAh Y -¢, FmEr 9,319,000/ -
<. ot @sfia gshrer G T -\ hTEhT 2,143,000/~
o. oft TSt 9Tt " TG 2%, HTEhT 2,3%,000/-

AT A J09% /\9'9 AT TG FIHHTN AfUHA T AU THE FIHARIT SAErhe TAT FEOAT qfela T SqGE AT TG FULA
FHATEEATE JaT T s, s ¥ o gfaa faawor

I I 0%/ e AT dele qUT YT JTYd THE HRISRT TIRdes & £9,24,000.00 (37edl THEgl arg
TS §STR W), TR U hiehRT SAfehd qoT St dfeaers & 39 40,0%%.00 (7Rt Hde arg w=mg
BT STefier A1) b1 TTRUshT & | | FoTeears fRmTgar et S, gd o=T, SHErt ey anmeH, faer
ATYqhT BT TS TIEUHT & | A1, Y FRISRT Afshd T T @ FHRIEHT hdars th HleTsesh!
et et SHITSTHeRT TR T STTETHeRT ATHT B WTSTET felg 3Ueissr TRISTHT & |

AT VAT T TR AR T
3Tefeh & 0wt/ e HT FAIATEHT fahE dF T fashm Sl IR TR uFeTsiaue wa Fnfuee wfdnT w
FereEEe JRETCT STt TehT ATIIITRT T &.2,¥ 2 3% 10’00 Tl B |

THT %9 I FFafa @ ar fot et et fqawor

Tk SeheTTs STTawaeh U STTRAT Frufdeeehl Gl qer fastent faawor areerra afeq g faxier faaromer srgeh
¥.2% T Seoid TRUH 3 |

et @iie qur fast el o Seheht ST uemee fafammeaeticr diehent shrfafr STaea THuH 3 |

THT QoY FHIH TFIg FFIAI S HOHT HIETLRT G@<oT

TIHT |

TG A A1 T FA SHITH A1 AT TAaaTH T @S 09 5 Fi T
TTHT |

AT ATAIF HLEE -

TIHT |
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JroRqdl &
IR o fdprRa db feifdiesdr

fardiuat gaf aen foreprere foridractt 2003 @Y forera 26 @Y 3uferrd (2)

o1 Toaferra aiftfe ufddger

. A arfaEt gfaaed ¢
aTieh wfdeeT Ser TRushT |

R. AT TeTRaRT qfaaey -
itk FfderaaT Her TusT |

3. AEUeuT o fahe e
aTfifeh wfdeemT er TRushT |

¥, EEAT FRAE! aeret faawor -

(®) TR WEAT AT HeAr fakg HA HET T WURT WU
qiae sfrefe T el SRR faartaamr g fafaa wehfaer g1 wfaerT aree fashme st faegt faswm
SiReRT HeTeTeh ST, YU=ERIGt GEhTSIel HUTel UL Aehagl THIT R09% /¥ /0 AT ST IRUS FHITSTH ¥ IF ATHH!
Sh TITeTeh UGHT STeTeT Ta &a & T TSI ST TRehT o Hrer-emT STHeia SHTg T fashr Sehetts aod
faueft a1 Tatoa STaTeraT ffd Rows WIZ < & fad fa/fHee UeT TWUehT | T faerma sfrct STerav el faeg
HET SR T |

(@) G FEATHT HEATTR T TSR AT HEATIF AT GoATAHH (TRGHT AT (Huwaht s ar RISTET STurer Tt
LT T AT T AT HCHT AT
T SaETe TiafaraeT Sraf-ad JEmTHar S TS a6 0wt/ e FafawT faswe St dares .
YUETTETGL TEHISTST AT T SFGRT T R00% /% /R0 AT TRY GRu= SHITTT 0y T ATt s4fth HeTeish TeHT
TR T&T T &7 9 T3 STRY ekl T aver-emr STeeafd SH1E Juter U S qT THET fashme Ses o
faaeft aTE Tatea STaTeranT fafd Rows WiE ) T fa e/ faeT ver mivusmT Tated Eedare fafd Rowvs Wi
20 T & ITINUT T TGN ST USRI T ST ST YUZTRIG WS HaTelsh YGHT TATEd T WgHUh! & | 81 J5T
BT T Ui FETAT Tatee STeTaduT faemifeT 3 @l o |

() FH FEAH qT GSATAF (q6g AT STUE TR FFEAT Fl Tl TAT HCHT AT
AT re-eHT F STHRRT HTod THTE |
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GARIMA BIKAS BANK LTD.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Garima Bikas Bank Ltd. (the ‘Company’), which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashadh 31, 2077, Statement of Profit or
Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the company as at Ashadh 31, 2077 and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
company in accordance with the ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our audit opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. Our assessed key audit matters and how we addressed them are outlined below:
i. Impairment of Loans & Advances
Bank’s policy regarding impairment of loans & advances has been described in Note
3.4 (f).
As per para 58 of NAS 39, the Bank has assessed at the end of reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that the financial assets or group of financial
assets measured at amortized cost is impaired, and in case such evidence existed, it
has applied para 63 to determine the amount of impairment loss.
However, as per carve out on para 58 of NAS 39, the Bank has assessed and measured
impairment loss on loans and advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms
prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount derived as per
para 63 of NAS 39.

Given the fact that the impairment of loans and advances under para
require assessment of future cash flows and subsequent discounting to p erfvﬁﬁ
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and impairment of loans and advances under NRB norms require assessment of
various factors like overdue status along with other factors like utilization of loan,
whereabouts of borrowers, etc. which has certain limitations regarding availability
of accurate information, this is considered as key audit matters.

Our audit approach regarding impairment of loans and advances included:
Examination of loans and advances on sample basis including recovery
Testing controls on impairment

Testing controls on credit appraisal process

Assessment of control over mortgage and its calculation

ii. Information Technology

The preparation of financial statement is highly dependent on various reports
generated by Core Banking System of bank. Adequate and appropriate IT controls
are required to ensure that IT application processes the data as expected. Audit
outcome is dependent on the extent of IT controls and systems, and accordingly the
above areas are determined to be as key audit matter.
Our audit approach regarding Information Technology included:

o Testing the design, operation and effectiveness of IT control

e Understanding the data input and output system of CBS

e Review of output reports on sample basis and its validation with source

Responsibilities of Management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
in accordance with NFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregatel,,,ith;@_agggld
(1]

/ ;& N Q?{'Q

s ) %<
7 &

NG

B8 diftld ylddae 06&/6b



“Access to Al

New Plaza, Putalisadak,

P.0. Box 4204, Kathmandu-2!

G &G M T: +977-01-4434985

Chartered Accountants E - info@gandg.com.np

PAN No.: 301216742

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
On examination of the financial statements as aforesaid, we further report that:

i.

il
iil.

iv.

V.

Vi.
Vii.

viil.

ix.

We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose for our audit.

The accounts and records of the Bank has been maintained as required by law.
Financial statements are in agreement with the books of account maintained by
the Bank.

The capital fund, risk bearing fund and the provision for possible impairment of
asset of the Bank are adequate as per the Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation
given to us, the Board of Directors, the representative or any employee of the Bank
has not acted contrary to the provision of law relating to accounts nor caused
direct loss or damage to the Bank deliberately or acted in a manner that would
jeopardize the interest and security of the Bank.

The operations of the Bank were within its jurisdiction.

The Bank has not acted in a manner to jeopardize the interest and security of the
depositors and investors.

The Bank has a centralized core accounting system. The details received from
branches of the Bank, though are independently not audited, were adequate for
the purpose of our audit, and

We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, so far as it appeared
from our examination of the book of accounts.

For G & G Associates,

Chartered Accoug‘C

CA

Partner

Place Kathmandu
Date 2077/09/10
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Garima Bikas Bank Limited
Statement of Financial Position

As on 31t Ashad

2077

31 Ashad 2077 | 31 Ashad 2076

Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 4.1 6,930,070,554 6,452,851,995
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 1,798,069,116 1,219,671,094
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 - -
Derivative financial instruments 4.4 - 667,143,288
Other trading assets 4.5 - -
Loan and Advances to B/Fls 4.6 282,149,603 227,700,000
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 34,861,896,434 | 28,210,992,186
Investment securities 4.8 5,749,373,568 1,390,879,576
Current Tax Assets 4.9 26,306,044 656,683
Investment in subsidiaries 4.10 - -
Investment in Associates 411 3,525,489 2,792,762
Investment property 4.12 32,114,800 32,114,800
Property and equipment 4.13 391,237,359 359,688,011
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.14 7,340,899 7,582,168
Deferred tax assets 4.15 13,576,560 21,290,137
Other assets 4.16 197,987,446 155,744,543
TotalAssets | | 50,293,647,673] 38749,107,242
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.17 2,755,650,877 | 3,371,683,211
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18 134,573,512 500,000,000
Derivative Financial instruments 4.19 - 695,925,000
Deposit from customers 4.20 42,433,022,223 | 29,762,509,255
Borrowings 4.21 - -
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - -
Provisions 4.22 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 4.15 - -
Other liabilities 4.23 623,798,936 628,476,617
Debt securities issued 4.24 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - -

Total liabilities 45,947,045,548 | 34,958,594,083
Equity

Share Capital 4.26 3,238,689,428 | 2,788,367,997
Share Premium 97,068 97,068
Retained Earning 470,305,365 484,366,067
Reserves 4.27 637,510,464 517,682,026

Total equity attributable to equity holders

4,346,602,325

3,790,513,159

B~ ditie Yfddao 06&/bb
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| Non-controlling interests |

Total equity | 4,346,602,325 | 3,790,513,159

Total liabilities and equity 50,293,647,873 | 38,749,107,242
Contingent liabilities and commitment 428 1,767,053,461 2,277,109,565
Net assets value per share 134.21 135.94
Suman Kumar Malla Madhav Prasad Upadhaya Govinda Prasad Dhakal ~ Chandrakanta Baral Bijaya Raj Ghimire
Head-Finance & Accounts Dy. Chief Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman G&G Associates
Chartered Accountants
Dr. Ananda Prasad Shrestha Shyam Prasad Basyal Bimal Pandey Dr. Bhupendra Bahadur Khadka
Director Director Director Director
Sanjiv Dhakal Kunja Raj Thapa
Director Director

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 2077/09/10
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Garima Bikas Bank Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 Ashad 2077

| Particulars | Notes | 207677 (NPR) | 207576 (NPR)

Interest Income 4.29 4,734,067,337 3,675,566,829
Interest Expense 4.30 (3,111,740,402) | (2,273,633,586)
Net interest income 1,622,326,935 1,401,933,242
Fees and Commission Income 4.31 294,052,204 298,983,997
Fees and Commission Expense 4.32 9,701,714 5,457,249
Net fee and Commission income 284,350,490 293,526,747
Net interest fee and commission income 1,906,677,425 1,695,459,990
Net Trading Income 433 (788,956) 1,409,555
Other Operating Income 4.34 11,023,728 1,264,116
Total operating income 1,916,912,197 1,698,133,661
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.35 235,642,197 98,875,973
Net Operating income 1,681,270,000 1,599,257,688
Operating expenses

Personal Expense 4.36 491,033,138 424,881,405
Other Operating Expenses 4.37 296,556,516 241,221,630
Depreciation and amortisation 4.38 80,929,368 68,532,969
Operating Profit 812,750,978 864,621,685
Non operating income 4.39 8,232,287 6,597,929
Non operating expense 4.40 - -
Profit before share of results of Associates & Joint Ventures 820,983,264 871,219,614
Share of Results of Associates & Joint Venture 732,727 980,528
Profit before income tax 821,715,992 872,200,142
Income tax expense 4.41 244,460,223 277,776,214
Current tax Expenses 237,181,876 275,516,610
Deferred tax Expense/(Income) 7,278,347 2,259,604
Profit for the period 577,255,769 594,423,927
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the bank 577,255,769 594,423,927
Non-controlling interest - -
Profit for the period 577,255,769 594,423,927
Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share 17.82 21.32
Diluted earnings per Share 21.32

Suman Kumar Malla
Head-Finance & Accounts

Madhav Prasad Upadhaya
Dy. Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Ananda Prasad Shrestha Shyam Prasad Basyal

Director Director
Sanjiv Dhakal Kunja Raj Thapa
Director Director

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 2077/09/10
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Govinda Prasad Dhakal
Chief Executive Officer

Bimal Pandey
Director

Chandrakanta Baral

Chairman

Bijaya Raj Ghimire
G&G Associates

Chartered Accountants

Dr. Bhupendra Bahadur Khadka

Director
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Garima Bikas Bank Limited
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2077

| Paiculrs | Notes| 207677 (NPR) | 2075-76 (NPR)

Profit for the period 577,255,769 594,423,927
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
¢ Gains/(losses) from investment in equity instruments 11,651,772 (8,596,155)

measured at fair value
e Remeasurement of gain/loss on sale of shares 2,169,983 -
¢ Gains/(losses) on revaluation
e Acturial gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans (10,201,004) (7,291,028)
¢ Income tax relating to above items (1,086,225) 4,766,155
Net other comprehensive income that will not be 2,534,525 (11,121,028)
reclassified to profit or loss
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

¢ Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

» Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from translating financial

assets of foreign operation)

¢ Income tax relating to above items

¢ Reclassify to profit or loss
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be - -
reclassified to profit or loss
c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate
accounted as per equity method
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of Income Tax 2,534,525 (11,121,028)
Total comprehensive income for the period 579,790,294 583,302,899
Total comprehensive income attributable to: - -
Equity holders of the Bank 579,790,294 583,302,899
Non-controlling interest

Total Comprehensive income for the period - 579,790,294 583,302,899

Suman Kumar Malla Madhav Prasad Upadhaya Govinda Prasad Dhakal ~ Chandrakanta Baral Bijaya Raj Ghimire

Head-Finance & Accounts Dy. Chief Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman G&G Associates
Chartered Accountants
Dr. Ananda Prasad Shrestha Shyam Prasad Basyal Bimal Pandey Dr. Bhupendra Bahadur Khadka

Director Director Director Director

Sanjiv Dhakal Kunja Raj Thapa
Director Director

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 2077/09/10
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Garima Bikas Bank Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
As on 31t Ashad 2077

L Paicwals | 207677(NPR) | _207576(NPR)

Cash flows from operating activities

Interest Received

4,562,011,311

3,649,735,590

Fee and other income received

302,284,491

305,581,926

Dividend Received

6,891,459

2,523,205

Receipts from other operating activities

Interest paid

(3,260,142,220)

(2,208,726,482)

Commission and fee paid (9,701,714) (5,457,249)
Cash payments to employee (515,203,670) (385,828,254)
Other expense paid (150,164,332) (250,657,658)

Operating cash flows before change in operating assets and liabilities

935,975,325

1,107,171,077

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

(6,722,437,660)

(10,661,270,349)

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

(578,398,021)

(141,633,003)

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Other Trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions (54,449,603) (198,000,000)
Loan and advances to customer (6,714,490,420) | (9,607,564,379)
Other Assets 624,900,385 (714,072,968)

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities

11,004,430,627

12,886,532,618

Due to bank and financial institutions

(616,032,334)

1,879,088,982

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

(365,426,488)

281,500,000

Deposits from customers

12,670,512,968

10,033,557,913

Borrowings

Other Liabilities

(684,623,519)

692,385,724

Net Cash flow from operating activities before tax paid

5,217,968,292

3,332,433,346

Income taxes paid

(287,183,360)

(288,699,519)

Net Cash flow from operating activities

4,930,784,932

3,043,733,827

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of investment securities

(4,346,842,220)

(895,483,944)

Receipts from sale of investment securities 5,480,502 179,867
Purchase of plant and equipment (122,478,716) (206,209,569)
Receipt from sale of property and equipment (230,504) 264,040
Purchase of intangible assets 241,268 515,890

Receipt from sale of intangible assets

Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

(4,453,829,670)

(1,200,733,716)

Cash flows from financing activities

Receipt from issue of debt securities

3R diftld ylddae 06&/6b
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Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities - -

Repayment of subordinated liabilities
Receipt from issue of shares 450,321,431 (0)
Dividend paid (450,321,431) (95,058,000)
Interest paid - -

Other receipt/payment - -

Net cash from financing activities - (95,058,000)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 476,955,262 1,847,942,111
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Shrawan 01, 2076 6,452,851,995 4,605,023,457
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held 263,298 (113,573)

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,930,070,554 6,452,851,995

Suman Kumar Malla Madhav Prasad Upadhaya Govinda Prasad Dhakal ~ Chandrakanta Baral Bijaya Raj Ghimire

Head-Finance & Accounts Dy. Chief Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman G&G Associates
Chartered Accountants

Dr. Ananda Prasad Shrestha Shyam Prasad Basyal Bimal Pandey Dr. Bhupendra Bahadur Khadka
Director Director Director Director
Sanjiv Dhakal Kunja Raj Thapa
Director Director

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 2077/09/10
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Garima Bikas Bank Limited
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss

As on 31 Ashad 2077
(As per NRB Regulation)

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 577,255,769 | 594,423,927
Appropriations:

a. General reserve (115,451,154)

b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund (263,064)

c. Capital redemption reserve -

d. Corporate social responsibility fund (5,772,558)

e. Employees' training fund -

f. Other -

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 455,768,994 | 594,423,927
Regulatory adjustment :

a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (21,075,503)

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) -

c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) 14,168,026

d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)

e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) 7,713,577

f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)

g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+)

h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) (7,140,703)

i. Other (+/-)

Distributable profit or (loss) 449,434,391 | 594,423,927

Govinda Prasad Dhakal
Chief Executive Officer

Suman Kumar Malla
Head-Finance & Accounts

Madhav Prasad Upadhaya
Dy. Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Ananda Prasad Shrestha
Director

Shyam Prasad Basyal

Director Director

Kunja Raj Thapa
Director

Sanjiv Dhakal
Director

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 2077/09/10
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Bimal Pandey

Chandrakanta Baral
Chairman

Bijaya Raj Ghimire
G&G Associates

Chartered Accountants

Dr. Bhupendra Bahadur Khadka
Director

30



A ailRan faeer S ferfiids /'
& Garima Bikas Bank Limited

Garima Bikas Bank Limited
Notes to Financial Statement

4.1 Cash and cash equivalent

| Particulas | 207677 207576

Cash in Hand

777,343,831

553,822,681

Balances with B/Fis

6,152,726,724

5,899,029,314

Money at call and short notice

Other

6,930,070,554 6,452,851,995

"The fair value of cash and cash equivalent is its carrying value. Cash at vault is adequately insured for
physical and financial risks. The amount of cash at vault is maintained on the basis of the liquidity and
business requirements. Balance with BFls includes balance maintained at various banks and financial

institutions."

4.2 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

L Particas 207677 207576

Statutory balances with NRB

1,798,069,116

1,219,671,094

Securities purchased under resale agreement

Other deposit and receivable from NRB

1798069116 1,219,671,004

The fair value of balance with the Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) is its carrying amount itself. Balance with the
NRB is principally maintained as a part of the regulatory cash reserve ratio required by NRB.

4.3 Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions

Particulars
Placement with domestic B/Fls

2076-77

2075-76

Placement with Foreign B/Fls

Less: Allowances for impairement

otal |

4.4 Derivative Financial Instrument
Particulars
Held for trading

2076-77

2075-76

Interest rate swap

Forward exchange contract

Others

Held for risk management

Interest rate swap

Forward exchange contract

667,143,288

Others
Total

35 ditie Yfddao 06&/bb
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4.5 Other Trading assets

Treasury Bills - -

Government bond - -
NRB bonds : )
Domestic Corporate bonds - -

Equities - -
Other - -
oal -
Pledged - -
Non- Pledged - -

4.6 Loans and advances to B/Fls

L particas 207677 207576

Loan to Microfinance Institutions 284,999,599 230,000,000
Other - -
Less: Allowances for Impairment (2,849,996) (2,300,000)
Total 282,149,603 227,700,000

The loans have been provided to Microfinance Institutions in the normal course of business.

4.6.1

S s | wen | aoiss
Balance as at Shrawan 1 2,300,000 300,000
Impairment loss for the year: - -
Charge for the year 549,996 2,000,000

Recoveries/Reversal - -

Amount written off - -
Balance as at Ashad end 2,849,996 2,300,000

4.7 Loans and advances to customers

L particas 207677 207576

Loans and advances measured at amortized 35,425,574,578.49 28,539,694,749
Less: Impairment allowances

Individual Impairment (161,227,437) (69,401,677)
Collective Impairment (402,450,707) (259,300,887)
Net amount 34,861,896,434 28,210,992,186
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL - -
Total 34,861,896,434 28,210,992,186

Above impairment is as per NRB directive no. 2 which is higher than total impairment as per NAS 39.
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4.7.1 Analysis of loan and advances - By product

Product

Term Loans 12,267,742,730 9,449,673,826
Overdraft 8,340,278,981 7,435,971,107
Trust Receipt/Import Loans 8,454,182

Demand and other Working Capital Loans 206,560,264 25,000,000
Personal Residential Loans 4,076,338,143 3,288,774,702
Real Estate Loans 1,153,635,271 959,409,262
Margin Lending Loans 303,641,474 259,216,575

Hire Purchase Loans

4,384,262,166

3,989,928,387

Deprived Sector Loans

1,992,408,802

1,463,748,550

Bills Purchased

Staffs Loans

117,885,803

103,653,001

Other 2,333,054,255 1,488,742,618
Sub-total 35,184,262,069 28,464,118,028
Interest Receivable 241,312,509 75,576,721

Grand Total

4.7.2 Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency
Particulars

Nepalese Rupee

35,425,574,578

2076-77
35,425,574,578

28,539,694,749

2075-76
28,539,694,749

Indian Rupee

United States Dollar

Great Britain Pound

Euro

Japanese Yen

Chinese Yuan

Other
Grand Total

35,425,574,578

28,539,694,749

4.7.3 Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral
Particulars

Secured

2076-77

2075-76

Moveable/Immoveable Assets

33,116,544,742

26,217,367,949

Gold and Silver

941,311,313

862,579,226

Guarantee of Domestic BFls

Government Guarantee

Guarantee of International Rated Bank

Collateral of Export Document

Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt

239,584,153

301,287,909

Collatereal of Government Securities

Counter Guarantee

Personal Guarantee

¥ 0 ditie Yfddao 06&/bb
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Other Collateral 304,645,682 556,220,171
Sub Total 34,602,085,890 27,937,455,255
Unsecured 823,488,689 602,239,494

Grand Total

4.7.4 Allowances for Impairment

35,425,574,578

28,539,694,749

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 69,401,677 45,050,244
Impairment loss for the year: 91,825,761 24,351,432
Charge for the year 91,825,761 24,351,432
Recoveries/reversal during the year - -
Write- offs -
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency
Other movement
Balance at Ashad end 161,227,437 69,401,677
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 259,300,887 186,776,346
Impairment loss for the year: 143,149,820 72,524,541
Charge/(reversal) for the year 143,149,820 72,524,541
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency - -
Other movement -
Balance at Ashad end 402,450,707 259,300,887

Total allowances for impairment

563,678,144

328,702,564

4.8 Investment in securities
Particulars
Investment securities designated at FVTPL

2076-77

2075-76

Investment securities measured at amortized cost

5,515,769,166

1,220,566,116

Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI
Total

233,604,402
5,749,373,568

170,313,460
1,390,879,576

“Investment made by the development bank has been presented under this account head in two
categories i.e. investment securities measured at amortized cost and investment in equity measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income. Investment other than those measured at amortized cost
is measured at fair value and changes in fair value has been recognized in other comprehensive income.
Where income from the investment is received in the form of bonus shares, the valuation of investment is
made by increasing the number of shares without changing in the cost of investment."

4.8.1 Investment in securities measured at amortized cost

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Debt Securities - -
Government Bond 3,075,861,638 636,278,186
Government treasury bills 2,439,907,528 584,287,930

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds - -

Nepal Rastra Bank deposit instruments - -
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Garima Bikas Bank Limited

Other

Less: Specific allowances for impairment
Total

5,515,769,166

4.8.2 Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

1,220,566,116

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Equity Instrument
Quoted equity securities 154,404,402 143,513,460
Unquoted equity securities 79,200,000 26,800,000
Total 233,604,402 170,313,460

4.8.3 Information relating to investment in equities

Investment in quoted equity

2076-77

207

Cost

5-76

Fair Value

Rural Micro Finance Development Centre
Co. Limited

199 Shares of Rs. 651.86 Each 129,721 139,499 123,840 1,050,990
Sanima Mai Hydro Power
9,645 shares of Rs. 207.39 Each 2,000,289 2,150,835 2,000,289 2,148,405
N.M.B. Sulav Investment Fund1

- - 7,829,990 8,472,049
Varun Hydro Power Co. Ltd.
10 Shares of Rs. 100 Each 1,000 840 1,000 900
Hydroelectricity Investment & Develop-
ment Co. Ltd
15,930 Shares of Rs. 90.91 Each 1,448,200 2,118,690 1,448,200 2,564,730
Global I.M.E. Sammunat Yojanal
949,317 Mutual Fund of Rs. 10 Each 9,493,170 8,145,140 9,493,170 7,955,276
Nabil Equity Fund
337,950 Mutual Fund of Rs. 10 Each 3,379,500 | 3,153,074| 3,379,500| 3,153,074
Chilime Hydro Power Co. Ltd.
14,974 Shares of Rs. 560.05 Each 8,386,161 5,959,652 8,386,161 6,501,559
Surya Life Insurance Co. Ltd.
1,530 Shares of Rs 513.63 Each 785,848 685,440 785,848 697,680
Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

- -| 11,193,053 | 11,134,558
Laxmi Equity Fund
1,754,875 Mutual Fund of Rs. 10 Each 17,548,750 | 15,390,254 | 17,548,750 | 13,389,696
Siddhartha Equity Fund
967,748 Mutual Fund of Rs. 10 Each 9,677,480 9,677,480 9,677,480 9,764,577
Sanima Equity Fund
2,400,000 Mutual Fund of Rs 10 Each 24,000,000 | 23,832,000 24,000,000| 22,560,000
Citizens Mutual Fund-1
1,000,000 Mutual Funds of Rs 10 Each 10,000,000 | 10,060,000| 10,000,000| 10,180,000
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N.I.C. Asia Growth Fund

500,000 Mutual funds of Rs. 10 Each 5,000,000 5,095,000 5,000,000 5,140,000
Prime Life Insurance Co. Ltd.
15,427 Shares of Rs. 502.23 Each 7,747,945 8,191,737 7,747,945 5,350,971
National Life Insurance Co. Ltd.
16,059 Shares of Rs. 743.25 Each 11,935,791 | 10,631,058 | 11,935,791 9,165,195
Nepal Insurance Co. Ltd.

- - 3,155,867 3,815,058
Lumbini General Insurance Co. Ltd.
3,243 Shares of Rs. 566.14 Each 1,835,990 1,469,079 1,835,990 1,290,000
Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.
2,912 Shares of Rs. 490.02 Each 1,426,936 1,220,128 1,426,936 980,000
Api Power Co. Limited
9,938 Shares of Rs 486.10 Each 4,830,891 1,073,304 4,830,891 1,353,495
Arun Valley Hydro Power Co. Limited
13,499 Shares of Rs. 219.31 2,960,510 1,255,407 2,960,510 1,400,376
Himalayan Power Partner Limited
6,999 Shares of Rs. 373.24 Each 2,612,331 923,868 2,612,331 1,217,826
Butwal Power Co. Limited
37,033 Shares of Rs. 423.33 Each 15,714,054 | 13,294,847 | 15,714,054 | 13,769,394
Samata MicroFinance Co. Ltd
2,554 shares of Rs. 212.59 Each 542,960 842,820 380,760 457,650
Womi Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
27,501 shares of Rs. 227.26 Each 6,250,000 13,764,251 - -
Nabil Balance Fund 2
500,000 shares of Rs.10 Each 5,000,000 4,950,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
NIC Asia Balance Fund
1,000,000 shares of Rs.10 Each 10,000,000 | 10,380,000 - -
Subtotal 162,707,526 | 154,404,402 | 168,468,355 | 148,513,460
Investment in Unquoted equity
Prabhu Capital Limited
15,327 Shares of Rs. 97.87 Each 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
General Insurance Company Limited
20,000 Shares of Rs. 100 Each 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Sajilo Laghubitta Vittiya Sanstha Ltd.
1,33,000 Shares of Rs. 100 Each 13,300,000 | 13,300,000| 13,300,000 13,300,000
Citizen Mutual Fund 2
500,000 shares of Rs.10 Each 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Siddhartha Investment Growth Fund 2
2,500,000 shares of Rs.10 Each 25,000,000 | 25,000,000 - -
NMB 50
2,000,000 shares of Rs.10 Each 20,000,000 | 20,000,000 - -
Sunrise First Mutual Fund
1,000,000 shares of Rs.10 Each 10,000,000 | 10,000,000 - -
Adarsha Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
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Garima Bikas Bank Limited

24,000 shares of Rs.100 Each 2,400,000 2,400,000
Subtotal 79,200,000 | 79,200,000 | 21,800,000| 21,800,000
Note 1: Investment in quoted equity is valued at Market value & Promoter share is valued at half of the
market value
Note 2: Investment in unquoted equity is valued at Cost Price

4.9 Current tax Assets/Liability

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76

Current tax assets 264,138,915 276,173,293

Current year Income Tax Assets 264,138,915 276,173,293

Tax Assets of Prior Periods

Current tax liabilities 237,832,871 275,516,610

Current year Income Tax Liabilities 237,832,871 275,516,610

Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods - -
237,832,871 275,516,610

Total of income tax assets/(liabilities)

26,306,044

656,683

Current Tax Assets includes advance income tax paid by the Bank under self assessment tax returns filed as
per the Income Tax Act 2058 and tax deducted at source (TDS) on behalf of the Bank. Simialrly, the current
income tax liabilities includes the tax payable to the Government computed as per the provision of the
Income Tax Act 2058.

4.10 Investment In subsidiaries
2076-77 2075-76
Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries - -

Particulars

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries - -

Total Investment - -

Less: Impairment Allowances

Net Carrying Amount - -

4.10.1 Investment In quoted subsidiaries

2076-77 2075-76

................................................................. Ltd - ‘ - ‘ - ‘ ‘
............... shares of Rs...........c.cecveeeneee. Each
................................................................ Ltd - ‘ - ‘ - ‘ ‘
............... shares of Rs.............cccveeeneen.. Each
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4.10.2 Investment In unquoted subsidiaries ‘

2076-77 2075-76

4.10.3 Information relating to subsidiaries of the bank

Particulars Percentage of ownership
2076-77 2075-76

................................................................................... Ltd : -

4.10.4: Non Controlling Interest of the Subsidiaries 2076-77
Equity Interest held by NCI (%)
Profit (Loss) allocated during the year

Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Ashad End
Dividend Paid to NCI

Equity Interest held by NCI (%) 2075-76
Profit (Loss) allocated during the year

Accumulated Balances of NCl as on Ashad End
Dividend Paid to NCI

4.11 Investment In associates

2076-77 2075-76
Cost

Investment in Quoted associates - - -
Investment in Unquoted associates 618,700 3,525,489 618,700 | 2,792,762
Total Investment 618,700 3,525,489 618,700 | 2,792,762
Less: Impairment Allowances -
Net Carrying Amount 618,700 3,525,489 618,700 | 2,792,762

4.11.1 Investment In quoted associates

2076-77 2075-76

.................... Ltd

........ shares of Rs.... Each - - - -
.................... Ltd

........ shares of Rs.... Each -

I ) ) I
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4.11.2 Investment In unquoted associates
2076-77 2075-76

| Nepal Clearing House Limited (Note 1) | | | | |
| 12,294 Shares of Rs. 100 Each | 618,700| 3,5525489| 618,700 2,792,762 |

618700 35525489 618,700 2,792,762

4.11.3 Information relating to associates of the bank

Percentage of ownership
2076-77 2075-76

| Nepal Clearing House Limited 0.41% | 0.41% |

Investment in Nepal Clearing House is treated as Associates from 8th Ashad 2075 since the bank has
significant influence in the company via representation on the board of Directors of the company.

4.11.4: Equity value of associates

Nepal Clearing House Limited 854,789,144 673,524,065
854,789,144 673,524,065

4.12 Investment Properties
Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Investment Properties measured at Fair Value

Balance as on Shrwawan 01 - -

Addition/(Disposal) during the year - -

Net Changes in fair value during the year

Adjustment/Transfer

Net Amount - -

Investment Properties measured at Cost
Balance as on Shrawan 01 32,114,800 32,114,800
Addition/(Disposal) during the year

Adjustment/Transfer

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated impairment loss
Net Amount 32,114,800 32,114,800

Total 32,114,800 32,114,800
The land situated at Chitwan, Nararyangarh has been shown at cost which has been considered as
investment property.
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Garima Bikas Bank Limited

"The cost of an item of property and equipment has been recognized as an asset, initially recognized
at cost. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from
the expenditure will flow to the Bank. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working
condition are expensed as incurred. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment
(calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item)
is recognized within profit or loss. Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight- line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful life as per management judgement

as follows:"

- Gow Useful Life(Years)

Computer & Accessories 4 Years
Furniture & Fixtures 7 Years
Furniture Metal 10 Years
Machinaries 9 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Other Assets 5 Years
Vehicles 5 Years

Lease Hold Properties

Leasehold Period

Computer Software 5 Years
Web Page 5 Years
4.14 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Particulars Goodwill Software Other Total Ashad

end

Cost
As on Shrawan 01 2075 -| 15,478,910 - 56,500 15,535,410
Addition during the year - 2,994,500 - - 2,994,500
Acquisition - 2,994,500 - - 2,994,500
Capitalization - - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - - -
Balance as on Ashad end 2076 -| 18,473,410 - 56,500 18,529,910
Addition during the Year - 3,446,500 - - 3,446,500
Acquisition - 3,446,500 - - 3,446,500
Capitalization - - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - - -
Balance as on Ashad end 2077 -1 21,919,910 - 56,500 21,976,410
Amortisation and Impairment
As on Shrawan 01. 2075 - 7,420,402 - 16,950 7,437,352
Amortisation charge for the year - 3,497,207 - 13,183 3,510,390
Impairment for the year - - - - -
Disposals - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - -
As on Ashad end 2076 -| 10,917,609 - 30,133 10,947,742
Impairment for the year - - - - -
Amortisation charge for the year - 3,674,585 - 13,183 3,687,768
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Disposals - - -

Adjustment - - -

As on Ashad end 2077 -| 14,592,194 -

43,317

14,635,511

Capital Work in Progress

Net Book Value

As on Ashad end 2076 - 7,555,801 -

26,367

7,582,168

As on Ashad end 2077 - 7,327,716 -

13,183

7,340,899

"Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software.Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized where it is
probable that it will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are
amortized on the basis of expected useful life. Costs associated with maintaining software are recognized
as an expense as incurred.Software is amortised on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over its estimated
useful life, from the date that it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software for the current

and comparative periods is five years."

4.15 Deferred Taxes Assets/Liabilities

Particulars Deferred Tax

Assets

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

2075-76
Net

Deferred
Tax Assets /
(Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loans and Advances to BFls - - -
Loans and Advances to Customers - - -
Investment Properties - - -
Investment Securities 5,986,469 - 5,986,469
Investment In Associates - (652,218) (652,218)
Property and Equipment - (2,688,645) | (2,688,645)
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 1,851,811 1,851,811
Employees' Leave Liability 12,519,230 - 12,519,230
Lease Liabilities - - -
Provisions LLP - - -
Other Temporary Differences 3,594,514 3,594,514
Deferred tax on temporary differences 23,952,023 (3,340,864) 20,611,159
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses 678,978 - 678,978
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - -
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year end of 2075/76 21,290,137
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Shrawan 01, 2075 (18,783,586)
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 2,506,551
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in profit or loss (2,259,604)
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in Other 4,766,155
Comprehensive Income
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized directly in equity -
aftle Ufddae 066/6b ¥R
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Particulars

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items

Deferred Tax
Assets

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

2076-77
Net

Deferred
Tax Assets /
(Liabilities)

Loans and Advances to BFls

Loans and Advances to Customers

Investment Properties

Comprehensive Income

Investment Securities 2,490,937 - 2,490,937
Investment In Associates - (872,037) (872,037)
Property and Equipment - (3,112,493) | (3,112,493)
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 4,686,356 4,686,356
Employees' Leave Liability 9,523,901 - 9,523,901
FCY Revaluation 315,676 315,676
Lease Liabilities - - -
Provisions LLP - - -
Other Temporary Differences 34,986 34,986
Deferred tax on temporary differences 17,051,857 (3,984,530) 13,067,327
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses 509,233 - 509,233
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - -
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year end of 2076/77 13,576,560
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Shrawan 01, 2076 (21,290,137)
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (7,713,577)
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in profit or loss (7,278,347)
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in Other (435,230)

Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized directly in
equity

4.16 Other Assets

L Particas 207677 207576

Grand Total

197,987,446

Assets held for Sale - -
Other Non-Banking Assets - -
Bills Receivable - -
Accounts Receivable 66,999,459 31,459,067
Accrued Income - -
Prepayments and Deposits 22,487,387 18,205,516
Income Tax Deposit - -
Deferred Employee Expenditure 102,151,865 95,802,815
Other 6,348,735 10,277,145
Stationery Stock 5,754,578 9,715,094
Commission Receivable - -
Deposit 594,157 562,051
Prepayments for Promotor Share - -

155,744,543
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4.17 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Money Market Deposits

Interbank Borrowing - -
Other Deposits from BFls 2,755,650,877 3,371,683,211
Settlement and Clearing Accounts - -

Other Deposits from BFls - -

2,755,650,877 3,371,683,211

The balances in accounts maintained with the Bank by other local financial institution have been presented
under this head.

4.18 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

L Pattices 207677 207576

Refinance from NRB 134,573,512 -
Standing Liquidity Facility - 500,000,000
Lender of Last Resort facility from NRB - -

Securities sold under repurchase agreements - -
Other Payable to NRB - i

134,573,512 500,000,000

The amount payable to NRB shall include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity facility, lender of
last resort, sale and repurchase agreements, deposit from NRB etc.

4.19 Derivative Financial instruments

L Patticas 207677 207576

Held for Trading
Interest Rate Swap . -

Currency Swap - -

Forward Exchange Contracts
Others
Held for Risk Management

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap
Forward Exchange Contracts. - 695,925,000
Others - -

otal _________________|____________ 695,925,000

4.20 Deposit from customers

L Patticdas 207677 2075-76

Institutions Customers: 14,727,140,157 9,413,695,668
Term deposits 9,182,580,897 5,329,621,854
Call deposits 5,135,877,616 3,728,611,378
Current deposits 397,672,190 346,496,198
Other 11,009,453 8,966,238
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Individual Customers: 27,705,882,065 20,348,813,587
Term deposits 15,222,356,915 9,754,636,146
Saving deposits 12,237,377,270 10,312,853,338
Current deposits 234,942,789 272,483,120
Other 11,205,091 8,840,983

42,433,022,223 29,762,509,255

Deposit from customer includes matured fixed deposits as on reporting date.

4.20.1 Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers

L Pattices 207677 207576

Nepalese Rupee 42,433,022,223 29,762,509,255
Indian Rupee - -
United State dollar - R

Great Britain pound = B

Euro - -

Japenese yen - -

Chinese Yuan - -
Other - -

42433022223 29,762,509,255

4.21 Borrowings

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government
Other Institutions - -
Other
Sub total - -
Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions

Multilateral Development Banks
Other institutions
Sub total - i}

I I

4.22 Provisions

Provisions for redundancy - -

Provision for restructuring - -

Pending legal issues and tax litigation - -

Onerous contracts - -
Other - -

otal | . _
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4.22.1 Movement in Provisions

L particdas 207677

Balance at Shrawan 1

“Access to Al

2075-76

Provisions made during the year

Provisions used during the year

Provisions reversed during the year

Unwind of discount

Balance at Ashad end Y

4.23 Other Liabilities

L Paticdas 207677 207576

Liabilities for emloyees defined benefit obligations 15,621,187 23,187,176
Liabilities for leave 31,746,337 41,730,765
Short term employee benefits 121,030 1,131,795
Bills payable 1,876,727 1,724,509
Creditors and accruals 2,813,173 32,486,662
Interest payable on deposits 202,803,944 351,205,763
Interest payable on borrowing - -
Liabilities on defered grant income - -
Unpaid Dividend 14,334,579 3,033,098
Liabilities under Finance Lease - -
Employee bonus payable 91,301,777 96,911,127
Other Liabilities 263,180,181 77,065,722
Audit Fee Payable 2,855,700 1,593,200
TDS Payable 38,016,489 35,935,512
Micro Finance Central Fund - 8,558,459
Micro Finance Welfare Fund 28,368,712 11,510,133
Others 193,939,280 19,468,418

623,798,936 628,476,617

Liabilities relating to employees benefits like liabilities for defined benefit obligation gratuity, liabilities
leave, short-term employee benefits etc.,Creditors and accruals, unearned income, unpaid dividend etc.

are presented under this account head of other liabilities.

4.23.1. Defined Benefit Obligation

The amounts recognised in the statements of financials positions are as follows :

207677 207576

Present value of unfunded obligations 106,451,745 90,718,815
Present value of funded obligations - -
Total present value of obligations 106,451,745 90,718,815
Fair value of plan assets 59,084,220 25,800,873
Present value of net obligations 47,367,525 64,917,942
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 47,367,525 64,917,942
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4.23.2: Plan Assets
Plan assets comprise

Equity securities

Government bonds

Bank deposit

Other

59,084,220

25,800,873

59,084,220 25,800,873

4.23.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 90,718,815 62,654,504
Actuarial losses 8,053,386 12,321,340
Benefits paid by the plan - -
Benefits paid Directly (1,575,485) (8,976,656)
Current service costs; Past Service Cost and interest 9,255,029 24,719,627

Defined benefit obligations at Ashad end 106,451,745 90,718,815

4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets

L Patticas | 207677 2075-76

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 25,800,873 -
Contributions paid into the plan 33,581,504 26,288,223
Benefits paid during the year (298,157) (487,350)
Interest Income 2,147,618 86,003
Expected return on plan assets (2,147,618) (86,003)

Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end 59,084,220 25,800,873

4.23.5: Amount recognised in profit or loss

L Patticas | 207677 2075-76

Current service costs 28,239,804 20,066,333
Past service costs-(non Vested) - -
Past service costs (Vested) - -
Acturial (gain)/loss (26,179,261) -
Interest on obligation 7,194,486 4,653,294
Expected return on plan assets 2,147,618 86,003

7,107,411 24,633,624

4.23.6: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars

2076-77

2075-76

Acturial (gain)/loss

10,201,004

12,407,343

10,201,004 12,407,343

4.23.7: Actuarial assumptions

L Patticas 207677 207576

Discount rate

9%

8%

Expected return on plan asset

8%

8%
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Future salary increase 4% 8%
Withdrawal rate 5% 5%

4.24 Debt secutities issued

L Patticas 207677 207576

Debt securities issued designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

| Debt securities issued at amortised cost | | |

I e

4.25 Subordinate Liabilities

Redeemable preference shares

Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities
component)

Other
Total - -

4.26 Share Capital

L Pattices 207677 207576

Ordinary Shares 3,238,689,428 2,788,367,997
Convertible Preference Shares (Equity component) -

Irredemable Preference Shares (Equity component) -

Perpetual debt (Equity component only) - -
Total 3,238,689,428 2,788,367,997

4.26.1 Share capital detail

L Paticls | 207677 | 207576
Authorised capital
50,000,000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each 5,000,000,000 3,000,000,000
Issued Capital
27,883,679.97 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 75/76) 2,788,367,997
32,386,894.28 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 76/77) 3,238,689,428
Suscribed and paid up capital
27,883,679.97 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 75/76) 2,788,367,997
32,386,894.28 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 76/77) 3,238,689,428
Total 3,238,689,428 2,788,367,997

4.26.2 Ordinary Share Ownership

2076-77
%of holding __|__Amount _|

Domestic ownership 100.00% 3,238,689,428

Nepal Government

"A" Class licenced institutions

Other Licenced institutions
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Other institutions & individuals

Public 49.00% 1,586,957,820
Other 51.00% 1,651,731,608
Foreign Ownership

Total 100.00% 3,238,689,428
4.26.3  Share Holders List of Garima Bikash bank Limited above 0.5% share holdings

Address Category | Total Kitta Paid up %
Amount

1 Pradip Kumar Roongta Kathmandu Promoter | 673,987.06 | 67,398,705.51 | 2.08
2 Chandra Kanta Baral Kaski Promoter | 622,296.89 | 62,229,689.30 | 1.92
3 Shyam Prasad Basyal Syangja Promoter | 548,516.39 | 54,851,638.73 | 1.69
4 Chhabilal Kunwar Syangja Promoter | 465,423.45 | 46,542,345.47 | 1.44
5 Jamuna Kafle Syangja Promoter | 277,372.57 27,737,256.94 | 0.86
6 Rama Kanta Baral Kaski Promoter | 274,115.40 27,411,539.72 | 0.85
7 Prem Bahadur G.C Kaski Promoter | 250,389.68 25,038,967.71 | 0.77
8 Aananda Prasad Shrestha Kathmandu Promoter | 248,536.96 | 24,853,696.16 | 0.77
9 Yajanlal Shakya Myagdi Promoter | 237,818.14 | 23,781,814.25 | 0.73
10 | Shiva Pd. Katuwal Chhetri(K.C) | Myagdi Promoter | 237,815.97 | 23,781,596.79 | 0.73
11 | Sher Bahadur Budhathoki Kathmandu Promoter | 237,415.50 | 23,741,549.62 | 0.73
12 | Yadhav Kuamr Shrestha Syangja Promoter | 227,345.19 22,734,518.75 | 0.70
13 | Hari Kumar Shrestha Myagdi Promoter | 216,194.79 | 21,619,478.50 | 0.67
14 | Karna Bahadur Shrestha Syangja Promoter | 213,581.59 21,358,159.21 | 0.66
15 | Yam Bahadur Shakya Myagdi Promoter | 208,845.07 | 20,884,506.51 | 0.64
16 | Deependra Shrestha Myagdi Promoter | 202,703.40 | 20,270,340.15 | 0.63
17 | Kalyan Gurung Kathmandu Public 202,677.42 20,267,741.80 | 0.63
18 | Bhupendra Bdr. Khadka Myagdi Promoter | 198,495.63 | 19,849,562.74 | 0.61
19 | Raghupati Lamsal Syangja Promoter | 193,282.45 | 19,328,244.51 | 0.60
20 | Purna Bahadur Thapa Syangja Promoter | 191,226.36 | 19,122,636.02 | 0.59
21 | Bhagawati Devi Pathak Syangja Promoter | 188,204.27 | 18,820,426.51 | 0.58
22 | Rabindra Raj Joshi Myagdi Promoter | 178,842.42 17,884,242.15 | 0.55
23 | Khagendra Prasad Aryal Syangja Promoter | 174,748.32 | 17,474,831.83 | 0.54
24 | Ram Prasad Shrestha Syangja Promoter | 174,522.67 | 17,452,267.17 | 0.54

4.27 Reserves

L particas | 207677 207576

Statutory general reserve 579,436,052 463,984,898
Exchange equilisation reserve 263,064

Corporate social responsibility reserve 5,772,558 9,069,600
Capital redemption reserve

Regulatory reserve 72,740,400 66,405,797
Investment adjustment reserve 1,500,000 1,500,000
Capital reserve

Assets revaluation reserve - -
Fair value reserve (3,777,435) (12,353,042)
Dividend Equalisation Reserve
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Actuarial gain/(Loss) Reserve

(18,424,175)

(11,283,472)

Special reserve

Other reserve
Total

4.28 Contingent liabilities and commitments

637,510,464

358,245
517,682,026

- Particdas | 207677 207576

Contingent liabilities 109,451,540 83,409,009
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 1,657,601,921 2,191,775,893
Capital commitment - 1,924,663

Lease Commitment

Litigation

4.28.1: Contingent Liabilities

| 1,767,053,461| 2,277,109,565

L patialas | 20767 207576

Acceptance and documentary credit

Bills for collection - 1,724,509
Forward exchange contracts - -
Guarantees 103,229,540 77,980,000
Underwriting commitment

Other commitments 6,222,000 3,704,500
Total 109,451,540 83,409,009

4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Undisbursed amount of loans

303,810,000

1,118,247,000

Undrawn limits of overdrafts

1,353,791,921

1,073,528,893

Undrawn limits of credit cards

Undrawn limits of letter of credit

Undrawn limits of guarantee

1,657,601,921

2,191,775,893

4.28.3: Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in

financial statements

L Patalas 207677 207576

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for - 1,924,663
Approved but not contracted for

Sub total - 1,924,663
Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for - -
Approved but not contracted for - -
Sub total - -
Total - 1,924,663
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4.28.4: Lease commitments

Operating lease commitments

"Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable
operating lease, where the bank is lessee"

Not later than 1 year - ,

Later than 1 year but not later than 5  years - -

Later than 5 years - -
Sub total - -
Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating
lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year - -

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - -

Later than 5 years - -
Sub total - -
Grand total - -

4.28.5: Litigation
Contingent Tax Liabilities

4.29 Interest Income

L pattalas 207677 207576

Cash and cash equivalent 250,169,492 270,308,871
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -

Placement with bank and financial institutions - -

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions 32,670,715 10,715,877
Loans and advances to customers 4,335,928,479.59 3,360,412,918
Investment securities 107,531,609 27,332,337
Loan and advances to staff 7,767,041 6,796,826
Other Interest Income

Total interest income 4,734,067,337 3,675,566,829

4.30 Interest Expense

Due to bank and financial institutions - -

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 756,402 9,359,032
Deposits from customers 3,092,212,090 2,244,046,708
Borrowing 4,338,973 4,950,067

Debt securities issued - -
Subordinated liabilities - -
Other Charges 14,432,937 15,277,779

Total Interest expense 3,111,740,402 2,273,633,586
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Total Fees and Commission Income

294,052,204

Loan administration fees

Service fees 189,546,948 194,333,520
Consortium fees

Commitment fees

DD/TT/Swift fees - -
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees 7,907,289 38,915,380
Renewal fees 39,480,479

Prepayment and swap fees 7,323,055 8,211,922
Investment banking fees

Asset management fees

Brokerage fees

Remittance fees 11,797,832 12,886,470
Commission on letter of credit - -
Commission on guarantee contracts issued 2,503,218 1,677,052
Commission on share underwriting/issue

Locker rental 216,500 142,500
Other fees and commision income 35,276,882 42,817,153

298,983,997

4.32 Fees and commission Expense

ATM management fees

VISA/Master card fees

Guarantee commission

Brokerage

DD/TT/Swift fees.

Remittance fees and commission

Other fees and commission expense

9,701,714

5,457,249

Total Fees and Commission Expense

4.33 Net Trading Income

9,701,714

5,457,249

L Pattalas 20767 207576

Changes in fair value of trading assets

Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets

Interest income on trading assets

Dividend income on trading assets

Gain/loss foreign exchange transation (788,956.41) 1,409,555.45
Other - -
Net Trading Income (788,956) 1,409,555

4.34 Other Operating Income

L Patias 207677 207576

| Foreign exchange revauation gain/(Loss) |

1,052,255

| (1,523,128)|
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Gain/loss on sale of investment securities 3,310,519 -
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties

Dividend on equity instruments 6,891,459 2,523,205
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment (230,504) 264,040

Gain/loss on sale of investment property

Operating lease income

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver

Other Operating Income

4.35 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

11,023,728

1,264,116

L Pattalas | 20767 207576

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to BFls

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customers

235,642,197

98,875,973

Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with BFls

)
)
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment
)
)

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

Impairment charge/(reversal) on Other Assets

4.36 Personal Expenses

235,642,197

98,875,973

L Patialas 207677 207576

Salary 247,255,918 191,032,000
Allowances 107,299,954 77,074,846
Gratuity Expense 14,081,811 6,337,748
Provident Fund 20,625,707 14,646,080
Uniform 6,374,000 5,138,000
Training & development expense 3,560,215 6,416,519
Leave encashment (4,237,716) 18,844,900
Medical - -
Insurance 2,811,048 3,948,184
Employees incentive 237,200 -
Cash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension expense - -
Finance expense under NFRS 685,547 1,595,559
Other expenses related to staff 1,037,677 2,936,442
Subtotal 399,731,361 327,970,278
Employees bonus 91,301,777 96,911,127
Grand Total 491,033,138 424,881,405

4.37 Other Operating Expenses

L Patilas 207677 207576

| Directors' fee | 994,500 | 860,000 |
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Directors' expense 2,691,697 2,132,318
Auditors' remuneration 4,633,000 3,570,800
Other audit related expense 200,000 192,000
Professional and legal expense 146,000 -
Office administration expense (4.37 A) 65,868,904 66,460,834
Operating Lease expense (4.37 B) 167,341,074 128,428,477
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate social responsibility expense 9,602,455 2,944,796
Onerous lease provisions - -
Other Expenses 45,078,886 36,632,405
Repair & Maintenance Vehicle 1,513,477 1,655,087
Repair & Maintenance Others 4,686,071 4,185,816
Repair & Maint.. Office Equipment & Furniture 1,122,143 1,112,176
Share Issue Expenses 5,949 103,683
Deposit Premium 13,614,762 10,912,032
Branch Connectivity Expense 11,866,633 9,909,510
ATM Operation & Card Expense 12,269,850 8,754,102
Total 296,556,516 241,221,630

4.37 A. Office Administration Expenses

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Insurance 4,839,489 4,399,128
Postage, Telephone, 5,515,565 4,472,489
Printing & Stationery 15,731,353 17,539,284
Newspaper & Periodicals 240,402 278,707
Advertisements 10,289,391 8,408,162
Travelling Expenses 1,779,554 3,033,406
Fuel Expenses 5,253,913 5,740,808
Entertainment - -
AGM Expenses 1,465,408 1,606,166
Annual Fee 3,103,368 1,612,562
Office Expenses 15,842,251 15,410,506
Miscelleneous Expenses 1,808,211 3,959,617
Total 65,868,904 66,460,834
4.37 B Operating Lease Expenses
Particulars 2076-77 2075-76

House Rent Expenses 92,167,128 68,937,266
Electricity Expenses 16,737,319 12,905,476
Security Expenses 58,436,627 46,585,735
Total 167,341,074 128,428,477

4.38 Depreciation and Amortisation

Particulars

2076-77

2075-76

Depreciation on property and equipment

77,241,600

46,697,298

Depreciation on investment property
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Amortisation of intangible assets

3,687,768
80,929,368

21,835,670
68,532,969

4.39 Non Operating Income

Particulars

2076-77

2075-76

Recovery of Loan written off

Other Income
Total

4.40 Non Operating expense

8,232,287
8,232,287

6,597,929
6,597,929

2075-76

Particulars

Loan written off

2076-77

Redundancy provision

Expense of restructuring

Other expense.
Total

4.41 Income Tax Expenses
Particulars
Current Tax Expenses

2076-77
237,181,876

2075-76
275,516,610

Current Year

237,181,876

275,516,610

Adjustment for Prior Years

Deferred tax Expenses

7,278,347

2,259,604

Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences

7,278,347

2,259,604

Change in tax Rate

Recognition of Previously unrecognized Tax Losses

Total Income tax expense

4.41.1: Reconciliation of Tax Expenses and Accounting Profit

244,460,223

277,776,214

Particulars 2076-77 2075-76
Profit Before Tax 820,983,264 871,219,614
Tax Amount at the Rate of 30% 246,294,979 261,365,884
Add: Tax Effect of the expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 31,035,239 48,493,081
Less: Tax Effect on Exempt Income (284,158) (262,498)
Add/Less: Tax Effect on other Items (39,864,184) (37,411,846)
Total Income Tax Expenses 237,181,876 272,184,622
Effective Tax Rate 28.89% 31.24%
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Garima Bikas Bank Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31t Ashad 2077

1. Reporting Entity

Garima Bikas Bank Limited (referred to as “the Bank” hereinafter) is a National level Development bank
domiciled in Nepal, registered as a Public Limited Company under Companies Act 2063 & Banking and
Financial Institution Act, 2073. The bank has been formed after the merger of erstwhile bank Garima Bikas
Bank limited, Nilgiri Bikas Bank Limited & Subhechha Bikas Bank limited after approval from Nepal Rastra
Bank.The registered address of the Bank is located at Lazimpat, Kathmandu Nepal. Garima Bank Limited is
listed on Nepal Stock Exchange and is trading under the code “GBBL”".

The Bank operates commercial banking activities as Class “Kha” financial institution under the license from
Nepal Rastra Bank. The operations of the branch were carried out this year from the various 91 Branch
offices in Nepal.

2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB)
Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the format
issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives, 2076.The financial statements comprise
the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income shown in a single statement, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and
the Notes to the Accounts.

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Board of Directors in accordance with
Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) and as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB)
Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), respective provisions of
Bank & Financial Institutions Act 2073 & Companies Act 2063 and in accordance to the format & directives
issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives, 2076.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the year presented except otherwise stated.

2.2 Reporting Period & approval of Financial Statements
The Bank follows the Nepalese financial year based on Nepali calendar starting from 1st Shrawan 2076 and
ending on 31st Asar 2077. (17th July 2019 to 15th July 2020).

2.3 Functional & Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Bank's functional currency.
All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except where indicated
otherwise.

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions & Judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions in the application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on
the estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively.

2.4.1 Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Board of the Bank is satisfied
that the Bank has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this
assessment, the Board of Directors have considered a wide range of information relating to present
and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.
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Garima Bikas Bank Limited

2.5 Changes in Accounting Policies
The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

2.6 New Standards in Issue but not yet effective

e IFRS 9 has been internationally made applicable by International Accounting Standard Board from 1st
January 2018 but the same has not made applicable by the ICAN up to the reporting date.

e |ASB has issued a new accounting standard IFRS 15 Revenue from Contract with Customers for the
recognition of the revenue which has not been taken into consideration for the preparation of these
financial statement as the same has not been adopted by ICAN.

e On13lJanuary 2016 the IASB issued IFRS 16 to replace IAS 17, Leases which sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. IFRS 16 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 but has not been adopted by ICAN up to the reporting
period.

e  Others amendments in existing standards and interpretations issued by IASB are not applicable as
those are made effective by ICAN.

2.7 Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the discounting
is material.

2.8 Limitation of NFRS Implementation

Wherever the information is not adequately available and the cost to develop the same would exceed
the benefit derived, such exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective
sections.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following items which were

measured or recognized as stated:

1) Financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value at it’s initial recognition. Subsequent
recognition of FVTOCI and FVTPL financial instruments are measured at fair value.

2) Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized at the present value of the defined benefit
obligation after deducting the net of the plan assets, plus unrecognized actuarial gains, less
unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis where the accounting policies
and judgements as required by the standards are consistently used and in case of deviations disclosed
specifically.

3.2 Basis of Consolidation
The Bank does not have control over any other entity for consolidation of Financial Statements.

3.3 Cash & Cash Equivalent

The fair value of cash is the carrying amount. Cash and cash equivalent represent the amount of cash
in hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at short notice and highly liquid
financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in their value and used by the Bank in the management of short-term
commitment.

3.4 Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities
a. Recognition
The Bank initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position
when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Bank
initially recognize loans and advances, deposits and debt securities/ subordinated liabilities issued on
the date that they are originated which is the date that the Bank becomes party to the contractual
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provisions of the instruments. Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, Government
securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade
date at which the Bank commits to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Regular way purchase and
sale of financial assets are recognized on trade date at which the Bank commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

b. Classification

1) Financial assets

The Bank classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on
the basis of the Bank's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets.

The two classes of financial assets are as follows;

i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Bank classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions
are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii. Financial asset measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value. Financial
assets measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading
or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost
is directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets
are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of
Profit or Loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial recognition, the
Bank makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the instrument
is to be recognized in other comprehensive income are classified as financial assets at fair value
though other comprehensive income. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and
changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

2) Financial Liabilities

The Bank classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan commitments, as

follows;

e Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or
are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are
directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.
Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized at profit or loss

e Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as
subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

c. Measurement

i. Initial Measurement

All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction cost except in the case
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
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ii. Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried
at fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value taken directly to the statement of
profit or loss. Interest and dividend income or expense is recorded in revenue according to the terms
of the contract, or when the right to payment has been established.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value taken to Other Comprehensive Income. The Bank makes irrevocable
election to route fair value changes through Other Comprehensive Income. Gain/Loss on equity
instruments classified as fair value through other comprehensive income is charged directly to equity
and impact of re-measurement is shown in OCI.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Within this category loans and advances to the customers have been recognised at amortised
cost using the method that very closely approximates effective interest rate method. The losses arising
from impairment of such investments are recognised in the income statement within credit loss
expense. If the Bank were to sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity
investments before maturity (other than in certain specific circumstances), the entire category would
be tainted and would have to be reclassified as available-for-sale.

Expected future cash inflows in the nature of bonus to be received on maturity against insured staff
loan has not been considered in determining contractual cash flows while calculating amortised cost
due to unavailability of the mechanism to ascertain the bonus amount.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost, with any difference between
proceeds net of directly attributable transaction costs and the redemption value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

d. De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired
or where the Bank has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. If substantially all
the risks and rewards have been neither retained nor transferred and the Bank has retained control,
the assets continue to be recognised to the extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled
or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

e. Determination of Fair value

Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which fair values are disclosed have been classified into
three levels according to the observability of the significant inputs used to determine the fair values.
Changes in the observability of significant valuation inputs during the reporting period may resultin a
transfer of assets and liabilities within the fair value hierarchy. The Bank recognises transfers between
levels of the fair value hierarchy when there is a significant change in either its principal market or the
level of observability of the inputs to the valuation techniques as at the end of the reporting period.

Level 1: fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted

prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using
models where all significant inputs are observable.
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Level 3: portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation, is not based on observable market data.

When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available and represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length basis.
The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction
price — i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. However, in some cases, the fair
value of a financial instrument on initial recognition may be different to its transaction price. If such
fair value is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same
instrument (without modification) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only
data from observable markets, then the difference is recognized in profit or loss on initial recognition
of the instrument. In other cases, the difference is not recognized in profit or loss immediately but
is recognized over the life of the instrument on an appropriate basis or when the instrument is
redeemed, transferred or sold, or the fair value becomes observable.

All unquoted equity instruments are recorded at Cost because no realistic valuation inputs were
available to determine the fair value under NFRS 13.

f. Impairment

1.Impairment of Loans & Advances

The Bank reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each Reporting date to assess
whether an impairment loss should be provided in the Statement of Profit or loss. In particular, the
Management’s judgment is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
when determining the impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number
of factors and hence actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provisions made.
The individual impairment provision applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment
and is based on Management’s best estimate of the present value of the future cash flows that are
expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows, Management makes judgments about a
borrower’s financial situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired
asset is assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy and estimate of cash flows considered
recoverable.

Individual assessment of impairment of exposures means establishing whether objective evidence of
impairment exists, estimation of the present value of future cash flows, and calculation of the value
of impairment for each individual receivable from the borrower included in this assessment.

The bank has considered all loans and advances above NRs. 15 million and non-performing as per
NRB directive loan for individual assessment of impairment. The bank determines, for each individual
loan to be assessed for individual impairment, whether they expect to collect their receivables from
expected future cash flows (going concern) or from collateral realization (gone concern). If a bank
identifies objective evidence of impairment, the bank indicates, at single debtor level, the most
realistic sources of repayment (collection approach/strategy) based on all available information
regarding such borrower’s financial position and performances. The bank assesses whether collection
will be made from the borrower’s expected future operating cash flows (borrower continues to
perform business activities — going concern) or on the basis of collateral enforcement and realization
(expectation that the borrower ceases to exist —gone concern). In both cases, bank uses conservative
assumptions relating to the estimation of the expected cash flows, taking into account current
economic conditions and the Bank’s own economic forecasts.

When estimating impairment based on collateral realization, the recoverable amount is the present
value of the net inflow from collateral realization (taking into account the priority of claims),

discounted by applying the original effective interest rate to the expected time to realization.

A collective impairment provision is established for:
o Groups of homogeneous loans and advances that are not considered individually significant; and
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o Groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually
impaired

For the purpose of collective assessment of impairment bank has categorized assets in to fourteen

broad products as follows:

1. Agriculture Loan 2 Foreign Employment Loan
3. Business Loan 4. Deprived Sector Loan

5. Education Loan 6. Gold Silver Loan

7. Hire Purchase Loan 8. Housing Loan

9. Loan Against FDR 10. Personal Loan

11. Real Estate Loan 12. Service Loan

13.  Working Capital Loan 14. Margin Lending

The collective provision for groups of homogeneous loans is established using statistical methods
based on historical loss rate experience, Loss Given Default (LGD) and Probability of Default (PD)
computed using the statistical analysis of historical data on delinquency to estimate the amount of
loss for each class of portfolio selected on the basis of its product, risk factor, collateral coverage,
exposure group etc. Management applies judgment to ensure that the estimate of loss arrived at, on
the basis of historical information is appropriately adjusted to reflect the economic conditions and
portfolio factors as at the Reporting date. The loss rates are regularly reviewed against actual loss
experience.

In assessing the need for collective impairment, Management considers factors such as credit quality,
portfolio Size, etc.

As per the NFRS Carve out, the Bank measured impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher
of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount
determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS 39.

2.Impairment of Financial Investments- Available for Sale

The Bank also records impairment charges on available-for-sale equity investments when there has
been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost along with the historical
share price movements, duration and extent up to which the fair value of an investment is less than
its cost.

Refer Note 4.8 for details.

3.5 Trading Assets

Trading assets are those assets that the bank acquires principally for the purpose of selling in the near term
or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit shall be presented under this
account head. The other trading asset includes non-derivative financial assets. It includes Government
bonds, NRB Bonds, Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury bills, Equities etc held primarily for the trading
purpose.

3.6 Derivatives Assets & Derivative Liabilities

Derivative instrumentsinclude transactions like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange
contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes. Derivative financial instruments are
initially measured at fair value on the contract date and are subsequently re-measured to fair value at each
reporting date. The bank does not have any derivative instrument during the reporting period.

3.7 Property & Equipment
All property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost

includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
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the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated although it is subject to impairment testing. Depreciation on other
assets is calculated using the straight- line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Computer and Accessories 4 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 7 Years

Furniture (Metal) 10 Years
Machineries 9 Years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Other Assets 5 Years

Vehicles 5 Years
Lease-hold Properties Leasehold period

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of
financial position date. The value of the assets fully depreciated but continued to be in use is considered
not material.

Assets with costs less than NPR 5,000 are charged off on purchase as revenue expenditure.

3.8 Intangible Assets

Acquired Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which reflects market expectations of the probability
that the future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the Bank and are amortised on the
basis of their expected useful lives.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalised where it
is probable that it will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs
are amortised over the period of 5 years in Straight Line method (SLM). Costs associated with maintaining
software are recognised as an expense as incurred.

3.9 Investment Property
Land or Land and Building other than those classified as property and equipment and non-current assets
held for sale under relevant accounting standard are presented under this account head.

Further land which is rented and held for capital appreciation motive is classified as investment property.
Land situated at Narayangarh has been classified as Investment Property which is valued at Cost .

3.9.1 Assets held for sale and discontinued operation
Land or Land and Building other than those classified as property and equipment and investment

property under relevant accounting standard are presented under this account head.

The bank doesn’t have any Land or building classified under Asset held for sale and Discontinued op-
eration.

3.9.2 Investment in Associates
Associates are those entities in which the Bank has significant influence, but not control, over the

financial and operating policies.

As per para 6 of NAS 28, Investment in Associates and Joint venture, existence of significant influence

ditied "Ufddae 906&/6b Y



A ailRan faeer S ferfiids /'
& Garima Bikas Bank Limited

is evidenced by way of representation on the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the
investee.

The bank has representation in board of NCHL thus subject to above provisions the bank has classified
Nepal Clearing House Ltd.(NCHL) as Associates with effect from 8th of Ashad 2075.

Investments in associate entities are accounted for using the equity method (equity-accounted in-
vestees) and are recognized initially at cost.

3.10 Income Taxes

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities of Nepal. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date in Nepal. The
liabilities recognised for the purpose of current Income tax, including fees, penalties are included under
this head.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rate applicable to the Bank as at the reporting date which is expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax relating to items which are charged or credited directly to equity, is credited or charged
directly to equity and is subsequently recognised in the statement of profit or loss together with the
deferred gain or loss.

3.11 Deposits, Debt Securities Issued & Subordinate Liabilities

The Bank accepts deposits from its customers under savings account, current account, term deposits
and margin accounts which allows money to be deposited and withdrawn by the account holder. These
transactions are recorded on the bank's books, and the resulting balance is recorded as a liability for the
Bank and represents the amount owed by the Bank to the customer.

The bank does not have any debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities.

3.12 Provisions

A provision is recognized if as a result of a past event, the bank has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation. The amount recognised is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the reporting date, taking in to account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation at that date. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates and are reversed if there is not the probability of outflow of resources.

The contingent liability are the liabilities for which it is uncertain as to whether it will become an obligation
as it depends on the occurrence of an uncertain future event. These amounts are off-balance sheet items
and are disclosed when there is a possible obligation that may but probably will not require an outflow of
resources.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Bank from
a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract.

3.13 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and
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the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognised.

Interest Income

Interest Income include interest income on loan and advance, investment securities except on those
investment securities measure at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalent, due from
Nepal Rastra Bank, due from BFls, loan and advances to staff etc.

Interest income on loans and advances is recognized on amortised principal which is nearer to the effective
interest method suggested by NFRS. The adoption of effective interest method is not possible due to
constraints of time, effort and cost in short term compared to the benefits it provides. Benefit of cave
out has been applied to this effect. Interest of loans and advances which are significantly impaired are
not recognized. Furthermore, the interest income has not been recognized where the loan's contractual
payments of principal/and or interest are more than 12 months in arrears, irrespective of the net realizable
value of the collateral as guided by the guidelines issued by NRB.

Interest income on government bond, treasury bills and bank balances are recognized under effective
interest method.

Fees and commissions

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided
or significant act performed. Service Fee Income/Expenses are recognized on accrual basis unless it is
impracticable to recognize as allowed through carve-out on NFRS.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the Bank’s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when the shareholders approve the dividend.

Net Trading Income
Net trading income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value and the related interest income
or expense and dividends, for financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading.

Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Contractual interest income and expense on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss
is recognised within net interest income.

3.14 Interest Expense

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest bearing financial assets classified as
available-for-sale and financial instruments designated at FVTPL, interest expense is recorded using the
EIR unless it is impracticable.

3.15 Employee Benefits

Retirement Benefits

The Bank has schemes of retirement benefits namely Gratuity & Provident Fund.

Retirement benefit obligation

Details of post-employment benefits are as follows:

Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which a Bank pays fixed contribution
into a separate Bank (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the
current and prior periods, as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).
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The contribution payable by the employer to a defined contribution plan in proportion to the services
rendered to Bank by the employees and is recorded as an expense under ‘Personnel expense’ as and when
they become due. Unpaid contribution are recorded as a liability under ‘Other Liabilities’.

Bank contributed 10% on the salary of each employee to the Employees’ Provident Fund. The above
expenses are identified as contributions to ‘Defined Contribution Plans’ as defined in Nepal Accounting
Standards — NAS 19 (Employee Benefits). In compliance with Labour Act 2074, provision is made for
gratuity payable to employees who joined bank on a permanent basis.

Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
Accordingly, staff gratuity has been considered as defined benefit plans as per Nepal Accounting Standards
— NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

Gratuity

An actuarial valuation is carried out every year to ascertain the full liability under gratuity.

Bank’s obligation in respect of defined benefit obligation is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned for their service in the current and prior periods and discounting
that benefit to determine its present value, then deducting the fair value of any plan assets (if any) to
determine the net amount to be shown in the Statement of Financial Position. The value of a defined
benefit asset is restricted to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds
from the plan or reduction on the future contributions to the plan. In order to calculate the present value
of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirement that apply to any planiin
Bank. An economic benefit is available to Bank if it is realizable during the life of the plan, or on settlement
of the plan liabilities.

Bank determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit liability at the beginning of the annual period to the defined benefit liability
at the beginning of the annual period. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on government
bonds that have maturity dates approximating to the terms of Bank’s obligations.

The increase in gratuity liabilities attributable to the services provided by employees during the year
ended 16th July, 2019 (current service cost) has been recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under
‘Personnel Expenses’ together with the net interest expense. Bank recognizes the total actuarial gain and
loss that arises in calculating Bank’s obligation in respect of gratuity in other comprehensive income during
the period in which it occurs.

The demographic assumptions underlying the valuation are retirement age (58 years), early withdrawal
from service and retirement on medical grounds.

Accumulated Leave

The Bank provides accumulated leave benefit under its staff byelaw. The Home Leave is accumulated up to
60 days and there is no limit for the accumulation of Sick Leave. An actuarial valuation is carried out every
year to ascertain the full liability under accumulated leave.

Staff Bonus

Provision for bonus has been made at 10% of net profit.

3.16 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfiiment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Bank as a lessee

Leases that do not transfer to the Bank substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership

of the leased items are operating leases. As per NAS 17, Lease payments under an operating lease shall
be recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis
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is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit. The bank's lease terms & conditions are
such that it addresses the time pattern on more systematic basis hence the contractual payments are
recognised as an expense in the income statement.

Bank as a lessor

Leases where the Bank does not transfer substantially all of the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset
are classified as operating leases. Rental income is recorded as earned based on the contractual terms of
the lease in other operating income.

3.17 Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the NPR using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss, except when recognised in other comprehensive income.
Non-monetary assets that are measured at fair value are translated using exchange rate at the date that
fair value was determined.

3.18 Financial Guarantee & Loan Commitment

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Bank to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument. Loan commitments are firm commitments to provide credit under pre
specified terms and conditions.

Loan commitment is the commitment where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to
a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether
cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the Bank has not made payments at the reporting date, those
instruments are included in these financial statements as commitments.

3.19 Share Capital & Reserves

Share Capital

Financial instruments issues are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer
cash, other financial assets or issue available number of own equity instruments. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction net of taxes from the proceeds.
Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognised in equity in the period in which they are
declared.

The share issue expenses which can be avoided for the issue was charged in the year of issue directly
through equity and disclosed in statement of changes in equity. Tax impact is also disclosed.

Reserves
The reserves include regulatory and free reserves.

General Reserve
There is a regulatory requirement to set aside 20% of the net profit to the general reserve until the reserve
is twice the paid of share capital. The reserve is the accumulation of setting aside profits over the years.

No Dividend (either cash dividend or bonus share) are distributed from the amount in General/ Statutory
Reserve.

Exchange Equalization Reserve
The Bank is required to appropriate 25% of current year’s total revaluation gain (except gain from

revaluation of Indian Currency) into this heading. The bank has no exchange gain at the reportable date.

Regulatory Reserve
The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Bank to this reserve as per the

diftle "lddae 06&/6b 9Q



A ailRan faeer S ferfiids /'
& Garima Bikas Bank Limited

Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded as free
for distribution of dividend (cash as well as bonus shares) shall be presented under this account head.
The amount allocated to this reserve shall include interest income recognized but not received in cash,
difference of loan loss provision as per NRB directive and impairment on loan and advance as per NFRS
(in case lower impairment is recognized under NFRS), amount equals to deferred tax assets, actual loss
recognized in other comprehensive income, amount of goodwill recognized under NFRS etc.

Fair Value Reserve

Assetsthatare not classified as Fair Value through Profit and Loss, Held to maturity and Loans and Receivables
are categorised as Available for Sale financial instruments. The Bank has under regulatory provisions a
requirement to appropriate the upward movements in fair value under AFS reserve. The accounting of gain
or loss in the fair value movement of AFS Financial Assets is done though other comprehensive income
under NAS 39.

Other reserve
Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above) are presented under
thus by disclosing accounting heads.

a) Corporate Social Responsibility Fund
The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating
1% of Net profit as per NRB Directive is presented under this account head.

b) Investment Adjustment Reserve
It is a regulatory reserve created in Bank's investments as directed by the Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

c) Actuarial Gain/(Loss) Reserve

Actuarial Gain/ loss Reserve has been created to record the Actuarial gain or loss occurring due to change
in actuarial assumption under NAS 19. The gain or loss has been disclosed under this reserve after
presentation through Other Comprehensive Income.

3.20 Earnings Per Share

The Bank measures earning per share on the basis of the earning attributable to the equity shareholders
for the period. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares for the relevant
period as required by NAS 33 - Earnings Per Share.

3.21 Proposed Dividend

The board of directors in its meeting dated Poush 10, 2077 has proposed dividend of 14.21% (Approx.)
(0.71% cash dividend and 13.50 % bonus share) of paid up capital, subject to approval from Nepal Rastra
Bank and Annual General Meeting.

3.22 Segmental Reporting

The Bank’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating segments are
reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the bank’s management, which is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. All transactions
between business segments are conducted on an arm’s length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs
being eliminated in Head Office. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included
in determining business segment performance.

The Bank has determined segments based on the geographical area by the management for decision
making purpose.

3.23 Interim Financial Reporting

Interim reports corresponding to the financial statements had been reported in accordance with the

regulatory reporting requirements. Those statements have been published quarterly in national level

newspaper. The bank has utilized the benefits provided by Carve-out on NFRS for reinstatement of earlier
year figures.
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5. Disclosures and Additional Information
5.1 Risk Management

Risk Management structure of the Bank has set clear separation between business function and risk
management function. Accordingly, the Bank has set up a separate Risk Management & Compliance
Department. The department oversees the risk that arise out of daily business operation as well as on
periodic basis and are put to the oversight of Top Management, Risk Management Committee and the
Board to discuss the reports thereon and issue instructions as appropriate.

i. Risk Management Committee:

Board of Directors is the apex and supreme authority of the Bank and is responsible to frame and implement
robust policies and framework for effective compliance of regulation and direction issued by the regulatory
authority. The board understands the nature of risk of the bank, and periodically reviews reports on risk
management, including policies and standards, stress testing, liquidity and capital adequacy through the
reporting by the Risk Management Committee and the Asset- Liabilities Management Committee.
Pursuant to the NRB directive on corporate governance, the Bank has established Risk Management
Committee with well-defined terms of reference in line the NRB directive. The committee supervise overall
risk management of the Bank broadly classified as liquidity risk, market risk, operational risk and credit risk.

ii. Risk Governance

Bank has prepared and implemented policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises level arising
to the bank and has inculcated risk culture among the employees by establishing ownership mentality,
capacity building programs, well defined job responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical culture.

Through its Risk Management Framework, the Bank seeks to efficiently manage credit, market and liquidity
risks which arise directly through the Bank’s commercial activities as well as operational, regulatory and
reputational risks which arise as a normal consequence of any business undertaking.

The Assets and Liabilities Committee is responsible for the management of capital and establishment of,
and compliance with, policies relating to balance sheet management, including management of liquidity,
capital adequacy and structural foreign exchange and interest rate exposure and tax exposure.

The bank’s risk governance structure is such that the responsibility for maintaining risk within the banks
risk blanket is cascaded down from the Board to the appropriate functional, client business, senior
management and committees. Information regarding material risk issues and compliance with policies
and standards is communicated through the business, functional, senior management and committees.

iii. Internal Control:

The Board is responsible for ensuring the Bank has appropriate internal control framework in place that
supports the achievement of the strategies and objectives. The various functions of the Bank should be
looked upon with a view to establish a proper control mechanism is in place during expansion and growth
which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which can cause loss
or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations and enhance resilience
to external events.

The effectiveness of the Company's internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its
Committees, Management and Internal Auditors.

The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/standards and the effectiveness of internal control
structures across the Bank through regular audit, special audit, information system audit, Off Site review.
The audit observations are reported to the Management for initiating immediate corrective measures.
Internal Audit reports are periodically forwarded to the Audit Committee for review and the committee
issues appropriate corrective action in accordance with the issue involved to the management.
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5.1.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the probability of loss of principle and reward associated with it due to failure of counterparty
to meet its contractual obligations to pay the Bank in accordance with agreed terms. The Credit Risk
Monitoring and Reporting Framework/ have been prepared in order to mitigate/ minimize the credit risk
of the Bank through appropriate monitoring and reporting framework established within the Bank.

Bank has implemented various System/ Policies/ Procedures/ Guidelines for the effective management of
Credit Risk. For the purpose of assessment of credit risk of the bank, following activities were carried out:
e Current system/policies/procedures/ guidelines formulated were gone through;
e  Actual Exposure of credit limit product wise, segment wise were checked periodically;
e Review of various reports prepared by the Departments such as Loan Utilization Report, Loan
Overdue Report, Loan Report, NRB reports.

Credit Risk Management is ultimately the responsibility of the Board of Directors Hence Overall strategy
as well as significant policies has to be reviewed by the board regularly. Further, Top Management is
responsible for implementing the bank's credit risk management strategies and policies and ensuring
that procedures are put in place to manage and control credit risk and the quality of credit portfolio in
accordance with these policies.

5.1.2 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign exchange rates (currency
risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (price risk).

i. Currency Risk:

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Bank to experience volatility in the value of its assets, liabilities
and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between the currencies of
its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency.

ii. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

iii. Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company's equity price risk exposure relates to financial investment held at FVTOCI, whose values
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.

5.1.3 Liquidity Risk

Bank recognize Market Risk as the possibility for loss of earnings or economic value to the Bank caused due
to adverse changes in the market level of interest rates or prices of securities (equity), foreign exchange
rates and commodity price fluctuation, as well as the volatilities, of those prices. While Liquidity risk is
chances of failure of a bank to meet obligations as they become due. Effective liquidity risk management
helps ensure the Bank's ability to meet its obligations as they fall due without adversely affecting the
Bank's financial condition and reduces the probability of developing of an adverse situation.

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Bank might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they
they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress
circumstances. Such scenarios could occur when funding needed for illiquid asset positions is not available
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to the Bank on acceptable terms. To minimize this risk, management has arranged for diversified funding
sources in addition to its core deposit base and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity in mind
and monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The Bank has developed internal control
processes and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected
cash flows and the availability of high grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding as
required.

5.2 Capital Management

5.2.1Qualitative disclosures

The Capital Adequacy calculation is mainly guided by the Capital Adequacy Framework 2007 (Updated
July 2008) as published by Nepal Rastra Bank. The Bank has formulated the "Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process which has been approved by the Board of Directors. The ICAAP is a system of sound,
effective, and complete strategies and processes that allows the Bank to assess and maintain, ongoing
basis, the amounts, types and distribution of internal capital that the Bank considers adequate to cover the
nature and level of risk to which the Bank is or might be exposed to.

5.2.2 Quantitative disclosures
a) Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

i. Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components Amt in 000'

2076/77_ | __2075/76

A Core Capital (Tier 1) 4,256,413.68  3,705,059.47
1 Paid up Equity Share Capital 3,238,689.43 2,788,368.00
2 Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares - -
3 Share Premium 97.07 97.07
4 Proposed Bonus Equity Shares
5 Statutory General Reserves 579,436.05 463,984.90
6 Retained Earnings 470,305.37 484,724.31
7 Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(loss) - -
8 Capital Redemption Reserve
9 Capital Adjustment Reserve
10 Dividend Equalization Reserves
11 Other Free Reserve 13,576.56 21,290.14
12 Less: Goodwill
13 Less: Deferred Tax Assets 13,576.56 21,290.14
14 Less: Fictitious Assets
15 Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions
16 Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests
17 Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits
18 Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments
19 Less: Reciprocal crossholdings
20 Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized 32,114.80 32,114.80
21 Less: Other Deductions
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i) Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components Amt in 000

B Supplementary Capital (Tier 2 )eligible 421,885.83 only 448,658.66 302,903

1 Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

2 Subordinated Term Debt

3 Hybrid Capital Instruments

4 General loan loss provision 448,395.60 301,403.00

5 Exchange Equalization Reserve 263.06

6 Investment Adjustment Reserve 1,500.00

7 Asset Revaluation Reserve

8 Other Reserves

iii) Total Qualifying Capital Amt in 000'
Core Capital (Tier 1) 4,256,413.11 3,705,059.84

2 Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 421,885.83 302,903.00
Total 4,678,298.94 4,007,962.48

iv) Total Risk Weighted Exposures Amt in 000'

1 Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 31,298,046.08 26,428,698.85

2 Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 2,430,157.69 1,347,068.92

3 Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 1,617.30 1,495.15

4 Total Risk Weighted Exposures (Before adjustments of Pillar I1) 33,729,821.07 27,777,262.92

5 Adjustments under Pillar Il

6 Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar Il) 27,777,262.92

33,729,821.07

v) Total Capital Adequacy Ratios Amt in 000

1 Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's 12.62% 13.34%
adjustments of Pillar I1)

2 Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 13.87% 14.43%

(After Bank's adjustments of Pillar I1)
Summary of the bank's internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support current and
future activities, if applicable;

The bank also takes into consideration these risk factors during assessment of ICCAP. The bank's internal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICCAP) involves assessment of actual capacity of the Bank, additional
capital requirement in relation to the existing risk profile of the bank and additional capital requirement in
relation to the business growth of the bank.

Amount of NPAs as per NRB Directive Figure in NPR
m—
19,917,741.59 19,917,741.59 0.06%

Doubtful 135,312,946.62 67,656,473.31 0.38%
Substandard 122,233,301.40 30,558,325.35 0.35%
Watch 138,450,191.90 6,922,509.60 0.39%
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Good5* 2,302,241,019.48 115,112,050.97 6.51%
Good 32,633,220,664.47 326,361,039.31 92.31%
Total 35,351,375,865.46 566,528,140.13 100.00%

Good5*: Loan has been categorized as good loan but 5% provision has been provided as per the NRB
guidelines.

Compliance with external requirement
The bank has complied with the externally imposed capital requirements during the reporting period.

5.3 Classification of Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities Figure in NPR

Financial Assets Amortized Cost Fair value Fair value
through other through

comprehensive | profit or loss
income

Cash in hand 777,343,831 777,343,831
Balances with B/Fls 6,152,726,724 6,152,726,724

Money at call and short notice - -

Interbank placement - S

Balance at NRB 1,798,069,116 1,798,069,116
Derivative financial instrument -
Loans & Advances 35,710,574,177 35,710,574,177
Government bonds 3,075,861,638 3,075,861,638
Government treasury bills 2,439,907,528 2,439,907,528
Equity investments 233,604,402 233,604,402
Other assets 89,498,142 89,498,142

Total Financial Assets 50,043,981,155|  233,604,402|  -| 50,277,585,557

Financial Liabilities Amortized Cost Fair value through Total
profit or loss (FVTPL)

Held for | Designated
trading at FVTPL

Deposits from customers 42,433,022,223 42,433,022,223
Due to Banks & Financial Institutions 2,755,650,877 2,755,650,877
Due to Nepal Rastra Banks 134,573,512 134,573,512
Debt Securities - -

Employee related liabilities 123,377,340 123,377,340
Bills payable 1,876,727 1,876,727
Creditors and accruals 2,813,173 2,813,173
Interest payable on deposit 202,803,944 202,803,944
Interest payable on borrowing - -

Unpaid Dividend 14,334,579 14,334,579
Liabilities under Finance Lease - -

Other liabilities 263,180,181 263,180,181
Total Financial Liabilities 45,931,632,556 - - 45,931,632,556

5.4 Operating Segment Information

1. General Information

a)  The bank has categorized its segment on the basis of presence in the geographical provinces of the country.

b)  Each segment provides banking services such as corporate and retail lending, deprived sector
lending, various deposit products and transaction banking services.
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2.Information about Profit or Loss, Assets & Liabilities

Revenue from External Customers 354,262,630.88 8.75 27,344,918.13 0.46 2,036,674,687.74 34.33

Intersegment Revenues (116,505,993) (438,499) 24,518,104

Net Revenue 237,756,638 8.58 26,906,419 0.50 2,012,156,584 37.02
Interest Revenue 327,099,756 9.54 22,156,643 0.48 1,447,378,613 31.17
Interest Expenses 123,744,304 8.49 16,106,147 0.52 1,176,808,144 37.89
Net Interest Revenue 203,355,452 10.31 6,050,496 0.39 270,570,469 17.60
Depreciation and Amortization 9,698,888 3.05 1,630,440 2.01 33,071,446 40.86
Segment Profit/(Loss) 21,121,698 (1.70) (5,945,995) (0.82) (166,548,451) (22.88)
Impairment Of Assets 14,709,452 - 2,257,678 - 179,705,154 76.26
Segment Assets 3,319,977,975 6.68 458,659,881 0.71 28,725,102,667 44.59
Segment Liabilities 3,298,856,277 6.47 464,605,875 0.73 28,891,651,117 45.36
Revenue from External Customers 2,261,537,234.67 38.12 1,196,942,222.85 20.17
Intersegment Revenues 224,541,859 (116,911,480)

Net Revenue 2,036,995,376 37.48 1,080,030,743 19.87
Interest Revenue 1,759,383,490 37.89 1,039,704,957 22.39
Interest Expenses 1,232,894,137 39.70 534,801,695 17.22
Net Interest Revenue 526,489,353 34.24 504,903,262 32.84
Depreciation and Amortization 18,238,188 22.54 14,278,489 17.64
Segment Profit/(Loss) 604,164,809 83.00 287,919,857 39.55
Impairment Of Assets 14,423,730 6.12 19,977,844 8.48
Segment Assets 20,974,771,240 32.56 10,233,862,273 15.89
Segment Liabilities 20,370,606,432 31.98 9,945,942,416 15.61
Revenue from External Customers 16,085,951.54 0.27 40,506,437.09 0.68 5,933,354,083
Intersegment Revenues (2,422,880) (12,781,112) (0)
Net Revenue 13,663,072 0.25 27,725,325 0.51 5,435,234,158
Interest Revenue 13,354,012 0.29 34,297,344 0.74 4,643,374,816
Interest Expenses 6,815,425 0.22 14,578,559 0.47 3,105,748,412
Net Interest Revenue 6,538,587 0.43 19,718,785 1.28 1,537,626,404
Depreciation and Amortization 835,532 1.03 3,176,385 3.92 80,929,368
Segment Profit/(Loss) (388,484) (0.05) (12,420,899) (1.71) 727,902,535
Impairment Of Assets 1,431,584 0.61 3,136,756 1.33 235,642,197
Segment Assets 214,688,187 0.33 497,230,217 0.77 64,424,292,439
Segment Liabilities 215,076,671 0.34 509,651,116 0.80 63,696,389,904

3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets & liabilities

The transaction between the branches are charged at the price decided by the bank's management on
time to time basis.

The pricing mechanism is periodically reviewed by the management.

EVEE

Total revenues for reportable segments 5,933,354,083
Other revenues 0
Elimination of intersegment revenues 0
Entity's Revenue 5,933,354,083
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Profit or loss ]

Total profit or loss for reportable segments 727,902,535
Other profit or loss 0
Elimination of intersegment profits 0
Unallocated amounts: 0
Profit before income tax 727,902,535
ssets
Total assets for reportable segment 64,424,292,439
Other assets 0
Unallocated amounts 0
Entity's assets 64,424,292,439
Liabilies ./
Total liabilities for reportable segments 63,696,389,904
Other liabilities 0
Unallocated liabilities 0
Entity's liabities 63,696,389,904

5. Information about products and services

Revenue from each type of product and services described in pint no. 1(b) above.
a) Loans & Advances

b) Fees & Commission income.

6. Information about geographical areas
Revenue from following geographical areas.

Domestic Amount

Province 1 354,262,631
Province 2 27,344,918
Province 3 2,036,674,688
Province 4 2,261,537,235
Province 5 1,196,942,223
Province 6 16,085,952
Province 7 40,506,437
Foreign 0
Total 5,933,354,082.90

7. Information about major customers
Total revenue from any single external customer does not amount to 10 percent or more of the bank's
revenue.

5.5 Share Options and share based payment
The bank does not have any share option and share based payment.
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5.6 Contingent Liabilities & Commitment

Contingent Liabilities

Where the Bank undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees issued for which
an obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are included in these financial
statements as contingent liabilities.

Commitment

Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer
in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not and the Bank has not
made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these financial statements as
commitments. Details of contingent liabilities and commitments are given in note 4.28.

5.7 Related Party Disclosures

Following has been identified as Related Parties for Bank under NAS 24 Related Parties:
a. Directors

b. Key Management Personnel of the Bank

c. Relatives of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

FY 2076-77 FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Directors

Mr. Chandrakanta Baral Mr. Chandrakanta Baral Mr. Chandrakanta Baral

Dr. Anand Prasad Shrestha Dr. Anand Prasad Shrestha Dr. Anand Prasad Shrestha

Mr. Shyam Prasad Basyal Mr. Shyam Prasad Basyal Mr. Shyam Prasad Basyal

Mr. Bimal Pandey Mr. Bimal Pandey Mr. Bimal Pandey

Dr. Bhupendra Bahadur Khadka Dr. Bhupendra Bahadur Khadka  Dr. Bhupendra Bahadur Khadka
Mr. Sanjeev Dhakal Mr. Sanjeev Dhakal Mr. Sanjeev Dhakal

Mr. Kunja Raj Thapa Mr. Kunja Raj Thapa Mr. Kunja Raj Thapa

Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Govinda Prasad Dhakal Mr. Govinda Prasad Dhakal Mr. Govinda Prasad Dhakal
Mr. Madhav Prasad Upadhyay Mr. Madhav Prasad Upadhyay Mr. Madhav Prasad Upadhyay

Transaction during the Year

Directors

Directors Sitting Fees 994,500.00 860,000 959,000
Interest Paid to directors on deposits 1,102,323 3,312,446 2,253,468
Other directors' expenses (if any) 1,542,505 1,542,505 2,834,428

3639,328| __5714,951) __6,046,8%

Key Management Personnel
Remuneration and Benefit Paid 16,105,547.42 14,709,707 14,030,377
Post-Retirement Benefits - -

Other Long-term Benefits - -

Borrowing during the year 4,000,000
Interest on Borrowing 268,272 84,806
Interest on account balances 15,862 43,390 36,811

Other transactions benefits if any

16,389,681 18,837,903 | 14,067,188

g ditie Yfddao 06&/bb



“Access to Al

Reporting Date Balances

207677 207576 | 207475

Directors Deposits 41,744,522.14 31,080,114 12,815,770
KMP Deposits 166,455 139,556 829,367
Borrowings 8,935,000 4,935,000 4,935,000

Other Receivable payables if any

50,845,077.14| 36,154,670 18,580,137

5.8 Merger & Acquisition
Bank has not undertaken any mergers and acquisition during the year.

5.9 Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities
Not applicable.

5.10 Covid-19 Related Disclosures:

The COVID-19 the outbreak was declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organization on March 21,
2020, and affected the world's economy including Nepal's economy. There have been significant decline
and volatility in financial and economic activities due to the outbreak of COVID-19 as the government
declared nationwide lockdown for almost 3 months. The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues
to evolve as of the date of the authorization of the financial statement. The extent to which the COVID-19
will have an impact on the Bank’s financial position, financial performance credit quality and provisions are
highly uncertain to anticipate and depends upon the future developments of this pandemic.

Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) has taken unprecedented measures to alleviate the impact of the pandemic which
includes the reduction on cash reserve ratio, deferment in instalment and interest collection by six, nine
and twelve months as the case maybe and relaxation in loans and advances classification norms among
other things. To revive the business and provide financial relief to the customers, Garima Bikas Bank has
provided the additional working capital to the COVID impacted customers and extended the discount on
interest due as per NRB Circular and on suo moto.Pursuant to the requirement of NRB Circular, the bank
has provided the following monetary reliefs to the customers impacted by the pandemic:

i.) 10% Interest Rebate:

Due to the countrywide lockdown started form Chaitra 11, 2076 the bank has given interest rebate to the
costumer amounting Rs 6,273,268.93 as per the provision stated by the central bank for the month of
Chaitra 2076.

ii.) 2% Interest Rebate:

As per the circular issued by the Central Bank to the bank & financial institutions the bank has provided
the interest rebate of amount Rs. 112,324,370.03 to the eligible costumers of the bank as stated by the
circular. Further, the bank has provided the additional interest rebate amounting Rs 5,588,576.81 to the
highly affected hire purchase costumers.

iii.) Detail of loan classification in which 5 percent concessional loan loss provision has been provided
as per the Directive issued by Central Bank (Dir # 2, Point No. 9 (1) ).

Total No of Loans Total Principal Total Provision

| 1924 | 2,302,241,019.48 | 551,618,172.35 | 115,112,050.97 |
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iv) Detail of the Working Capital/Term Loan Enhancement by the bank as directed by the Central Bank
Vide Circular.

Total Number Total Amount

| 575 | 404,271,943.82 |

5.11 Other Disclosures:

a) Accrued Interest:
As per the directive 4/77/(3) issued by Nepal Rastra Bank the accrued interest received up to Ashwin 2077
amounting Rs 188,962,539.64 has been adjusted in regulatory reserve.

b) Regulatory Reserve:
The regulatory reserve reconciliation has been stated below;

| Particulars FY 2076/77 FY 2075/76

Accrued Interest 36,962,230 15,886,728
Deferred Tax 13,576,560 21,290,137
Fair Value Adjustment 3,777,435 17,945,460
Acturial Loss Adjustment 18,424,175 11,283,472

72,740,400 66,405,797

5.12 Events after reporting date
Events after the reporting date are those events, favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the
reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue.

All material and important events that occurred after the reporting date have been considered and
appropriate disclosures have been made in line with NAS 10 — “Events After the Reporting Period”.
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Paid up Capital

323.87

278.84
253.49
220.42
8¢ 17 103:07
.88
2.65 1060 10.60 20.00 22.00 278644 I I
-0 .60 < ST

© A
A A

)
—
O
—
)
£
=
c
5
o
£
<

Deposit

6000.00

5000.00 .

4000.00
3313.42
: 3000.00
| 2122.12
2000.00 145134
22. 86

. 1000.00 - 635.86 9
: 10.86 68 88 122.10 143 80 21510 299 75 5 l

Amount in Crore

A ’(\
4 o
1,0/\ 3\

i Loan & Advance
| 5000.00

s 4500.00
K 4000.00
3514.40
@ 3500.00
o
& 3000.00 J845.87
E 2500.00
; é 2000.00 186500
i < 1500.00 1283 o
1000.00 ) 7
345 81
20000 64y 53.92 90.04 115.96 165 47 239 54 l
i 0.00
| & S S\ @ O ~ A A y A
> @ S S o S G R A s
. '1,0(0 q,ob q,o‘o ’»O(o ’»o(o ,»0‘0 '»0/\ ,»o’\ 1/0’\ '»0/\ ’1/0’\ ’»0/\ ’»0/\
| - —— - .
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Amount in Crores

Number

Number

900
800
700
600
500
400
300
200
100
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Net Profit

5944 5773

4379

34.90
22.20
14 42
10. 42
6.11

AL S G
(e}
'»0/\’» '»0/\% '»ol\b\ wol\% '19/\

Branches
91

Number of Staffs

816

719 "

433 "

250 .

130 132 I p
A A A
o' o &0 4> Y G O
’1/0/\ ,1,0/\ 0/\ ’»0/\ 0/\ ’»o/\ ’1/ /\
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Q000 3G FAATcAD! 18U TAT W31 AT

Deposit Mix

1%

= Current
= Call
= Saving

= Fixed

Deprived Sector, 4%

2\

Margin Lending, 1%

Term Loan, 33%

Hirepurchase, 12%
Realestate, 1% mwm———m—n0

Q008G |©© DT 3NJcloN T JWUD! [IYUT

Income Sources

0.43% _ 5.46%.40%

\ \

= |nterest Income
= Commsiisom & Discount
= Other Operating Income

= Non Operating Income

Expenses

2.08%

a9

= |nterest Expenses

= Staff Expenses

= Other Operating Expenses
= LLP Expenses

= Prov For Staff Bonus

= Provision For Income Tax
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